
 
 
 

 
 

Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting 
Briefing Packet 

 
 

May 15, 2017 
 



 
 

 1 

 

To safely protect and preserve life and property 

Click on the red page numbers to be instantly linked 
to the particular report.  

 

 
Board of Directors’ Meeting 

Monday, May 15, 2017 
Meeting Location:  Mt. Scott Fire Station 

6:30 pm 
 

AGENDA 
 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.710 

ORS 192.650 – The meeting is being recorded. 
ORS 192.710 – Smoking is banned during the meeting. 

 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION 

ON APRIL 17, 2017 (pg. 4) AND THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 
17, 2017 – (pg. 7) 
   

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (The President will call for statements from citizens regarding 
District business, not to exceed three minutes per person.) 

 
V. BUSINESS – Action required 
  B-1 Request Board Approval of Proclamation #17-02 – Designating the Week of 

June 18-27, 2017 as Safety and Health Week – Division Chief Corless –  
   (pg. 13) 
 
  B-2 Request Board Approval of Resolution #17-03 - Authorizing Fire District to 

Issue Bonds in 2017 – Chief Charlton – (pg. 14) 
 
  B-3 Request Board Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Lake 

Oswego Fire Department for Clackamas Fire District #1 to Provide Fleet 
Maintenance Services – Division Chief Scheirman/Fleet Director Bischoff – 
(pg. 25) 

 
VI. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required. (These items will be presented individually 

by staff or other appropriate individuals. A synopsis of each item together with a brief 
statement of the action being requested shall be made by those appearing on behalf of an 
agenda item.) 

  
OB-1 Legislative Update – Lobbyist Genoa Ingram 

 



 
 

 2 

 

To safely protect and preserve life and property 

Click on the red page numbers to be instantly linked 
to the particular report.  

 

 OB-2 Station 19 Update – Volunteer Coordinator Battalion Chief Deters 
 

OB-3 Single-Role Paramedic Update – Division Chief Conway 
 
 OB-4 Board Informational Items 

 
OB-5 Board Committee/Liaison Reports 

Capital Projects Committee – Director Trotter/Director Wall 
Foundation Liaison – Director Trotter 
Interagency Committee – President Joseph/Director Trotter 
Volunteer Association Liaison – Director Syring 
 

VII. INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
A.  Divisional Reports 

R-1a. Chief’s Report – Verbal - Chief Fred Charlton 
R-1b Administrative Services Division – Deputy Chief Jamie Karn – (pg. 37) 
R-1c Emergency Services Division – Deputy Chief Ryan Hari – (pg. 39) 
R-1d Financial Services Division – (To be distributed Monday) – Finance 

Director Christina Day 
  R-1e Fire Prevention – Division Chief Doug Whiteley – (pg. 82) 

R-1f Volunteer Services – Volunteer Services Chief Steve Deters – (pg. 89) 
 

B. Correspondence – (pg. 91) 
 

C. Informational Items – (pg. 98) 
 
D. Next Meeting 

 
VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS 

PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660(2)(e)  
 
IX. REGULAR BOARD MEETING RECONVENED 
  
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 
Upcoming Dates: 
June 18-24 – Safety and Health Week 
June 19 – Regular Board of Directors’ Meeting – 6:30 pm 
     Budget Hearing 
 















.







B-1



 Page 1

 Memo 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Chief Charlton 
CC: 

Date: May 9, 2017 
Re:  Resolution #17-03 - A Resolution of Clackamas Fire District #1, 

Clackamas County, Oregon, Affirming Resolution #15-05 

Action Requested 
Request Board approval of Resolution #17-03 – A Resolution of Clackamas Fire District #1, 
Clackamas County, Oregon, Affirming Resolution #15-05. 

Background 
Resolution #17-03 is brought before the Clackamas Fire District Board of Directors to 
affirm the authority granted in Resolution #15-05 and proceed with the issuance of all or 
a portion of the Remaining Authority.  The bonds issued will be entitled "Clackamas 
County Fire District No. 1, Clackamas County, Oregon, General Obligation Bonds, 
Series 2017."  Bond proceeds will be used to fund a number of capital improvements 
and new construction projects focusing on safety and service delivery.   

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution #17-03 – A Resolution of Clackamas Fire 
District #1, Clackamas County, Oregon, Affirming Resolution #15-05. 

Clackamas Fire District #1 

B-2























1

Clackamas Fire 

District No. 1 

Memo 

To: Board of Directors
Fire Chief Fred Charlton

From: Deputy Chief Ryan Hari
CC:

Date: 5/10/2017
Re: Intergovernmental Agreement for Provision of Fleet Maintenance Services for Lake

Oswego Fire Department

Action Requested
Request Board authorization for the Fire Chief to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) with Lake Oswego Fire Department for the provision of fleet maintenance services.

Background
The Fire District has been maintaining our own fleet and has also taken on this task for
Gladstone Fire and Canby Fire District.  Lake Oswego Fire Department has had an IGA with
another of their bordering Districts’, but are now in need of a provider of full fleet service with
the dissolution of their agreement at the end of FY17.  This full service includes someone
able to perform full and regular services that meet industry best practices and standards,
which Clackamas Fire District is able to provide.  The Fire District will have staff in place that
are able to perform at that level; however, as we begin the new construction of the new
facility, we have made it clear that our capacity may be affected for the first year of the
agreement. We have also established that the specified monthly reporting would be limited
due to the implementation of the new District-wide ERP not being complete until after
January 2018.

Budget Implications
This proposal generates revenue based on a Lake Oswego fleet analysis, which has a
predetermined quantity of hours that the Fire District will invoice from on a monthly basis.
Fire District staff has ensured that all of our costs, including overhead and administrative
costs, are included in the fee schedule, and the revenue generated will help fund an
additional full time employee (FTE) needed in the Fleet and Logistics Center, who will also
perform other functions as well.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the Board authorize the Fire Chief to enter into an Intergovernmental
Agreement with Lake Oswego Fire Department for the provision of fleet maintenance
services.

B-3



1 
 

 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  

FOR THE PROVISION OF FLEET MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

BETWEEN CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT #1 AND  

LAKE OSWEGO FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR FLEET MAINTENANCE 

SERVICES (“Agreement”) is entered into pursuant to ORS Chapter 190 (“Intergovernmental 

Cooperation”) by and between Lake Oswego Fire Department (“Lake Oswego”) and Clackamas 

Fire District #1 (“Clackamas Fire”) (collectively, the “Parties”) to provide for fleet maintenance 

services.  Clackamas Fire is a rural fire protection district formed under ORS Chapter 478 and 

Lake Oswego is a department of the City of Lake Oswego.  Both are units of local government 

under Oregon law. 

RECITALS 

A. Lake Oswego Fire and Clackamas Fire provide fire, rescue, and emergency 

services within their respective adjacent jurisdictions, utilizing both career and 

volunteer personnel. 

B. Clackamas Fire operates a fleet maintenance facility and services; and Lake 

Oswego Fire desires to obtain such services from Clackamas.  

C. Lake Oswego Fire and Clackamas Fire desire to provide efficient and affordable 

service to their respective communities by taking advantage of economies of scale 

and the relative strengths of each Party, and by minimizing unnecessary and 

costly duplication of services through intergovernmental cooperation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, the Parties 

hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Effective Date, Term, Renewal Term.  This Agreement shall be effective on the date it is 

signed by both parties.  The initial term shall be from the date it is signed by both parties 

until June 30, 2018, unless terminated sooner as provided herein.  The Parties hereby agree to 

provide the following service on the following dates: 

 

a. From July 1, 2017 until June 30, 2018, Clackamas Fire agrees to provide Full Fleet 

Maintenance Services as further described in Section 2b, unless otherwise terminated as 

provided elsewhere in this Agreement.  

 

b. Renewal Term.  The term of this Agreement shall renew for five (5) additional one (1) 

year terms unless either Party has provided at least nine (9) months written notice of its 



2 
 

intent not to renew.  Upon notice of an intent not to renew, both Parties will work in good 

faith to assist with an effective transition of services. 

 

2. Services.  

 

The Parties agree that the Services shall be as provided in the following documents:  1) this 

Agreement; and 2) the attached Scope of Work, which is incorporated into this Agreement by 

this reference.  Notwithstanding the immediately preceding, the Services shall be limited as 

described below. 

 

a. From July 1, 2017 until June 30, 2018, Full Fleet Services will be provided as follows: 

Service, repair, and maintenance for identified Lake Oswego Fire apparatus and vehicles 

as described in the attached Scope of Work. 

 

3. Compensation.  

a. Clackamas Fire agrees to provide monthly invoices to Lake Oswego Fire and Lake 

Oswego Fire agrees to pay Clackamas Fire the invoiced amounts, which shall reflect the 

cost of Services, including the labor, management software, technical support, 

warehousing, maintenance, parts and supplies, capital equipment, and other goods and 

services required under Section 2, Services. Invoices will be provided monthly on or 

before the first of each month, and payment is due within 30 days of the date of invoice.  

Invoices may be by electronic means. Any disputes with regard to required payments 

under this Agreement shall be resolved by the Clackamas Fire and Lake Oswego Fire 

Chiefs.  Any dispute that cannot be resolved by the Fire Chiefs shall be presented to each 

respective Board and Council for possible resolution prior to any collection proceedings 

being initiated by either Party. 

 

b. From July 1, 2017 until June 30, 2018, Clackamas Fire will invoice Lake Oswego Fire at 

a monthly rate of $4,463.03.  The total annual cost will be $53,556.36.  Clackamas in 

consultation with Lake Oswego, shall establish and publish by October 1, 2017 any new 

rate increase to be effective between July 1, 2018 and June 30, 2019.  

 

c. After July 1, 2018, Clackamas Fire will invoice Lake Oswego Fire at a rate which 

Clackamas Fire, in consultation with Lake Oswego Fire, shall establish and have 

published by October 1 of each year for implementation on July 1 of the following year.    

 

d. Amounts invoiced shall include all Services provided in Section 2, Services.  In the event 

Lake Oswego Fire requests and Clackamas Fire provides services beyond the Scope of 

Work, Clackamas Fire may charge additional amounts to the monthly invoice.  The 

Parties shall agree to the rate for such services in advance.  

 

e. The compensation and Scope of Work is based upon the current number and 

configuration of the Lake Oswego Fire Fleet, as identified in Exhibit “A”.  In the event of 

a change in the number or configuration of the Lake Oswego Fire Fleet, the Parties shall 

agree to a revised compensation schedule.  



3 
 

f. Parts and supplies are not included in the hourly or monthly rates of providing the 

Services in Section 3 b and c. Lake Oswego Fire will be billed monthly for all parts and 

supplies used to maintain the Lake Oswego Fire Fleet. 

 

4. Integration of Services.  

 

Clackamas Fire agrees to provide the Services as a fully integrated operation of Clackamas 

Fire Fleet Services.  Services will be provided in the same manner and quality that 

Clackamas Fire provides such services to its own fleet.  The parties agree to work together in 

good faith to develop protocols as necessary to effect the integration of the services provided. 

 

5. Capacity to Perform Within Scope of Work.  

 

Clackamas Fire will assign priority for Services taking into consideration both Parties’ fleet, 

timelines, and needs, as well as Clackamas Fires obligations under Section 2,  Services and 

Clackamas’s own policies and procedures, as they may be changed from time to time.  The 

Parties will discuss timelines prior to initiating Services under this Agreement. 

 

6. Assignment.   

 

This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the written consent of the other 

party.  However, pursuant to Clackamas Fire policies and procedures, and as provided in the 

Scope of Work, when work exceeds Clackamas Fires capability, training or certification, 

Clackamas Fire may assign the work to third party vendors, after consultation and written 

approval from the Lake Oswego Fire Fleet Services Liaison.  When the work has been so 

assigned, Clackamas Fire may, at its discretion, manage the third party vendor and Lake 

Oswego Fire agrees to be responsible for payment and final approval of the work.  The 

indemnity provisions of this agreement do not apply when work is assigned to third party 

vendors.    

 

7. Technician Training and Qualifications and Purchases.  

All Clackamas Fire employees shall be licensed or certified for the work performed under 

this Agreement, if such is required under Oregon law or industry standards.  Lake Oswego 

Fire shall bear the cost of any required specialized training on Lake Oswego Fire apparatus 

or components, if such training is different in type or brand from standards used by 

Clackamas Fire. Both Parties agree that all supplies, equipment, and services purchased will 

comply with Oregon’s public purchasing guidelines as adopted by Clackamas Fire.  

 

8. Operational Coordination. 

 

a. Clackamas Fire and Lake Oswego Fire will each provide a liaison to coordinate and 

ensure the efficient provision of day-to-day services.  The Liaison for Clackamas Fire 

will be the Fleet Director and/or Fleet Technician Supervisor, and the Liaison for Lake 

Oswego Fire will be the Fleet Service Liaison. 

b. Each of the Parties shall have the right to inspect, at any reasonable time, such records in 

the possession, custody, or control of the other Party necessary for review of the other 



4 
 

Party’s obligations and its rights under this Agreement.  The cost of such inspection shall 

be borne by the inspecting Party.  This right does not extend to records privileged or 

otherwise exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  Any Party required under this 

Agreement to create or develop records must maintain those records for inspection.  

 

9. Safety.  

 

a. When Clackamas Fire is performing services at a Lake Oswego Fire station or other Lake 

Oswego facility, at any non-Clackamas Fire location, or roadside, at least one Lake 

Oswego Fire employee or a volunteer shall remain on-scene until Clackamas Fire 

releases or transports the apparatus or vehicle.  This provision shall not apply to the 

services provided by Clackamas Fire at the Fleet Services Facility. 

 

b. Clackamas Fire shall notify Lake Oswego Fire of any faulty equipment or apparatus that 

it believes jeopardizes the safe operation of any Lake Oswego Fire vehicle or apparatus. 

 

c. Clackamas Fire shall under no circumstances be required to place a subject of service that 

Clackamas Fire deems unsafe into service, or perform services or repairs if such cannot, 

in Clackamas Fire’s sole discretion, be performed safely or the repair when done be 

deemed effective.  All decisions to authorize or release a vehicle to use are solely the 

responsibility of Lake Oswego Fire.  If the parties disagree with regard to Clackamas 

Fire’s or the manufacturer’s vehicle safety recommendations, either party may initiate the 

dispute resolution procedure of Section 17.   Such procedures shall not delay return of the 

vehicle to Lake Oswego Fire.  

 

10. Standard of Care.  

 

Clackamas Fire shall provide all services with reasonable care. Should parts or repair 

procedures fail due to defective workmanship by Clackamas Fire during the first 30 days or 

within 2,000 miles, whichever comes first, Clackamas Fire shall remedy the repair at no cost 

to Lake Oswego Fire. 

 

11. Termination. 

  

a. This Agreement may be terminated by either party, without cause, by giving nine (9) 

months’ written notice to the other party.  In such case, the parties will work in good faith 

to effect a transition of the services to the other service provider chosen by Lake Oswego 

Fire. 

 

b. Clackamas Fire may terminate upon 30 days’ notice for failure of Lake Oswego Fire to 

pay any sums when due.  

 

12. Liability; Indemnity. 

 

a. Each party shall be responsible for the acts of their respective employees, officers, and 

agents under this Agreement.  No party, nor any elected and appointed official, officer, 



5 
 

board member, employee, volunteer, or agent thereof shall be responsible for any damage 

or liability occurring by reason of the negligent acts or omissions, failures to act, or 

willful misconduct of the other party, their officers, board members, employees, 

volunteers or agents, in connection with this Agreement or arising out of any work 

performed under this Agreement. 

b. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 12 (a) above and subject to the tort 

limits in Oregon Law (ORS 30.260 through 30.300) and the Oregon Constitution, 

(Article XI, Section7), Clackamas Fire and Lake Oswego Fire each agree to defend and 

indemnify each other against any and all third party liabilities, causes of action, damages, 

or costs for injury or damage to life or property related to or arising from actions or 

failures to act under this Agreement.  The obligations assumed hereunder shall survive 

the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

13. Insurance. 

 

a. Each party shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance or sufficient self-

insurance reserves to cover all risks of damage or loss in the form of personal injury, 

bodily injury, or property damage for which either party may be liable for its acts or 

omissions done in the course and scope of its business, in the minimum amounts for 

which public entities are liable under Oregon Revised Statutes as those statutes now exist 

or may be amended, but in no event shall the amount of coverage for such risks be less 

than $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury, Property Damage, and Personal 

Injury in any one occurrence, and $3,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 

b. Neither party shall be liable to the other for any loss or damage to their facilities, 

vehicles, apparatus, equipment or other property arising from any cause for which it 

could have insured against under the parties normal policies, such as fire.  Each party, on 

behalf of its insurer, waives any right of subrogation that it might have against the other 

party. 

 

c. Clackamas Fire reserves the right to require additional insurance coverage, limits, and 

terms.  This insurance shall be considered as primary insurance and exclusive of any 

insurance carried by Clackamas Fire, and the insurance evidenced by the required 

certificates shall be exhausted first, notwithstanding the fact that Clackamas Fire may 

have other valid and collectible insurance covering the same risk.   

 

14. Personnel. 

 

a. Each party to this Agreement agrees to provide worker’s compensation insurance 

coverage to its employees and volunteers, and; each Party shall supervise their individual 

employees and volunteers while working under this Agreement.  The intent of this 

provision is to prevent the creation of any “special employer” relationships under Oregon 

workers’ compensation law, PERS regulations, or other state or federal laws/ 

b. Each of the Parties hereto is an independent agency for purposes of this Agreement.  No 

representative, agent, employee, or contractor of one Party shall be deemed to be an 



6 
 

employee, agent, or contractor of the other Party for any purpose, except to the extent 

specifically provided herein.  Nothing herein is intended, nor shall it be construed, to 

create between the Parties any relationship of principal and agent, employee, partnership, 

joint venture, or any similar relationship, and each Party hereby specifically disclaims 

any such relationship. 

c. Clackamas Fire and its employees are not employees of Lake Oswego Fire and are not 

eligible for any benefits through Lake Oswego Fire, including without limitation federal 

social security, health benefits, and workers ’ compensation, unemployment 

compensation, and retirement benefits.  Lake Oswego Fire and its employees are not 

employees of Clackamas Fire and are not eligible for any benefits through Clackamas 

Fire, including without limitation federal social security, health benefits, and workers ’ 

compensation, unemployment compensation, and retirement benefits. 

 

15. Waiver.  

 

The failure of either party to insist upon the strict performance of any of the terms, covenants 

or conditions of this agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or remedy that 

either party may have, and shall not be deemed a waiver of either party’s rights to require the 

strict performance of all terms, covenants and conditions thereafter, nor a waiver of any 

remedy for the subsequent breach of any of the terms, covenants or conditions. 

 

16. Force Majeure.  

 

No party to this Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fires, 

riots, acts of God and/or war, labor shortages, or other conditions beyond the Parties’ 

reasonable control.  

 

17. Dispute Resolution Process.  

 

In the event there are disputes or claims related to or arising under this Agreement, the 

following dispute resolution process will be followed.  It is the intent of the parties to solve 

the disputes and claims at the lowest level possible, and the issues and resolutions will be 

documented by mutually agreeable memorandum, if applicable. 

 

a. Consideration and resolution by and between the Clackamas Fire Fleet Director and the 

Lake Oswego Fire Fleet Service Liaison. 

 

b. Consideration and resolution by and between the Clackamas Fire Emergency Services 

Deputy Chief and the Lake Oswego Fire Operations Chief. 

 

c. Consideration and resolution by and between the Clackamas Fire, Fire Chief and the 

Lake Oswego Fire, Fire Chief. 

 

d. In the event the disputes or claims cannot be resolved under the above process, the 

dispute or claim shall be subject to binding arbitration.  Arbitration shall be conducted 



7 
 

pursuant to the rules of the Arbitration Service of Portland, and shall be conducted in 

Clackamas County, Oregon, unless otherwise agreed by the parties.  

 

e. In the event of any arbitration arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the 

enforcement thereof, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to recover its 

reasonable attorney fees, costs, and expenses from the non-prevailing party.  

 

f. The laws of the State of Oregon shall be applied in the interpretation, execution, and 

enforcement of this Agreement.  

 

18. Notices.  

 

All notices under this Agreement shall be deemed to be given when delivered personally to 

the person designated below or when three (3) days have elapsed after it is deposited in the 

United States mail in a sealed envelope, with registered or certified mail postage prepaid, or 

on the next addressed business day if sent by express mail, or by electronic means, to the 

party to which the Notice is being given, as follows: 

 

Lake Oswego Fire 

300 B Avenue 

PO Box 369 

Lake Oswego, OR 97034 

Fire Chief Larry Goff 

 

Clackamas Fire District #1 

11300 SE Fuller Road 

Milwaukie, OR  97222 

Fire Chief Fred Charlton 

 

19. Written Agreement.  

 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding by and between the parties with respect 

to the matters contained herein.  Any prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements by 

and between the parties or their agents and representatives relative to the matters contained 

herein are revoked and extinguished by this Agreement. 

 

20. Modification.  

 

This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument, signed by both Clackamas Fire 

and Lake Oswego Fire. 

 

 

 



8 
 

CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT #1 

 

By:__________________________________ 

Fred Charlton 

Fire Chief  

 

Date:________________________________  

  

LAKE OSWEGO FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

By:___________________________________ 

Larry Goff 

Fire Chief 

 

Date: _________________________________ 

 

 

 

  



9 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

1. Clackamas Fire will provide fleet maintenance and repair services (“Services”) for the below-

listed apparatus.  If Lake Oswego Fire needs Services for additional or different apparatus or 

additional Services, the Parties must agree in writing to a revised list and compensation rate.  

Services will be provided consistent with Clackamas Fire Fleet Operations department’s standard 

of care, best practices, and standard operating guidelines.  Such Clackamas Fire standards, 

practices, and guidelines are determined by the manufacturer’s service recommendations, 

Oregon Department of Transportation requirements, and the National Fire Protection Association 

guidelines as determined applicable by Clackamas Fire, and industry-recognized principles and 

practices.   

 
2. Changes to this Scope of Work, must be agreed to by both Parties in writing.  Without 

invalidating the Agreement, either Party may request changes in the Scope of Work consisting of 

additions, deletions, or modifications regarding the compensation rates, Scope of Work, or 

schedule of work.  All such changes in the Work shall be in writing and signed and authorized by 

the Parties.   

 

3. Lake Oswego Fire is responsible for requesting Services.  The Fleet Director will propose 

Service levels and timelines for Services.  Clackamas Fire will confirm if such levels and 

timelines are acceptable.  

 

4. Clackamas Fire will not provide Services beyond its capacity or capability. If Lake Oswego 

Fire approves the use of outside vendors for Services, Clackamas Fire may assign work to 

outside vendors and may, at its sole discretion, manage such assigned Services.  All assigned 

work is subject to this Agreement. 

 

5. Services provided under this Agreement include 24-hour emergency maintenance and repair 

services.  Notwithstanding any contrary provisions in this Scope of Work or this Agreement, if 

Lake Oswego Fire requests 24-hour emergency services, Lake Oswego Fire acknowledges and 

agrees that such emergency services may be assigned to outside vendors.  Such assigned 

emergency services may include, but are not limited to: mobile fueling at emergency operations 

or towing. Lake Oswego Fire agrees to promptly pay for such services as provided in this 

Agreement.  Clackamas Fire response regarding requests for 24-hour emergency maintenance or 

requests after-business hours will be provided pursuant to Clackamas Fire’s policy, as it may be 

amended by Clackamas Fire from time to time.  The Lake Oswego Fire Duty Chief on duty, or 

designee, will request any after-hours response.  Clackamas Fire may, in its sole discretion, 

determine the appropriate course of action.  Clackamas Fire will notify the Lake Oswego Fire 

Fleet Service Liaison of the after-hours event on the following business day.  

 

6.  NO SERVICE WARRANTIES.  Clackamas Fire Services are not warrantied unless expressly 

otherwise provided in this Agreement.  If a product or part is warranted by the manufacturer, 

such warranties will apply.   

 

7. Services that affect the safe operation and readiness of vehicles, apparatus or equipment will 

not be deferred by either party unless the unit is removed from service until repairs are made.  



10 
 

Only Services that have no operational impact, such as decal, paint and upholstery, may be 

deferred.  The Clackamas Fire Fleet management team and the Lake Oswego Fire Fleet Service 

Liaison will consult with each other, but either party may make a determination that any issue or 

combination of issues impacts operational safety or readiness and will not be deferred.  

 

8. Upon a Lake Oswego Fire request for Service, Clackamas Fire is authorized to complete any 

Service under $5,000, unless specific limits are established for the work by the Lake Oswego 

Fire Fleet Service Liaison, or other thresholds of financial or service authority are agreed to 

between Clackamas Fire Fleet Management and the Lake Oswego Fire Fleet Service Liaison.  

 

9. All Services will be performed and managed by Clackamas Fire Fleet Operations.  Any 

requested Services outside of the Scope of Work or beyond Clackamas Fire’s capabilities may 

either be managed by Lake Oswego Fire at its sole discretion or may be assigned to a third party 

by Clackamas Fire or Lake Oswego Fire, upon Lake Oswego Fire’s approval.  If Clackamas Fire 

assigns work, Clackamas Fire may, at its sole discretion, manage the third party’s work.  

Services performed directly by Clackamas Fire personnel are limited to the capability of 

Clackamas Fire’s Fleet Operations department.  Capability is limited by experience, qualified 

training and the required certifications necessary to complete the task.  The Parties will discuss 

any requests for Services which Clackamas Fire determines to be beyond its capability.   

Clackamas Fire will determine a recommended course of action including, but not limited to: 

assignment, removal from service, deferral of maintenance, or surplus of the subject of service. 

Such examples include, but are not limited to: towing, transmission repair, and major engine 

overhauls.  

 

10. Lake Oswego Fire shall be responsible for removing apparatus from service with other 

agencies and emergency response providers, and for coordinating its own work force and 

services based on the apparatus maintenance and repair schedule and availability.  

 

11. Clackamas Fire will work with Lake Oswego Fire Fleet Service Liaison to establish preferred 

protocols and processes for repair orders, work orders, and other documentation.  

 

 

 -End of Document- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



11 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

ID VIN Class 

9-191 1991 Pierce Arrow-  4P1CA02D9MA000421 Res Pumper 

9-192 1994 Pierce Arrow- 4PICA02D6SA000177 Res Pumper 

9-194 2001 Pierce Dash- 1P1CT02S71A001779 Pumper 

9-195 2005 Pierce Dash- 1P1CD01SX5A004759 Pumper 

9-196 2006 Pierce Dash- 4P1CD01H67A006788 Pumper 

9-292 2015 Pierce Velocity- 4P1BCAGF6FA015435 Truck 

9-350  Brush Rig 

   

   

 



Administrative Services Division 
To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Deputy Chief Jamie Karn 

Re: Administrative Services Division Monthly Report – April 2017 

• Station 19 fire activities.

• Entry level and Promotional testing processes.

• Boring Fire Annexation – Transition activities.

• Labor/management meetings.

• ITS meetings and division planning.

• Emergency Services Division meetings.

• Law enforcement coordination meetings.

• Personnel issues and processes.

• Boring/Damascus/Eagle Creek Community meetings.

• BC4 shift Management and Emergency Response activities.

• Organizational Development planning meetings.

• Civil Service planning meetings.

• Standard Operating Policy review and updates.

• EMT Recert training.

• Meeting regarding succession planning.

• Administrative Services staff meetings.

• Miscellaneous staff meeting.

Administrative Services 

R-1b

1



• Coordinated and attended Strategic Organizational Planning Session.

• Prepared meeting packets and attended the Joint Board Work Session.

2



Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors

From: Deputy Chief Ryan Hari

Re: Emergency Services Division Monthly Report – April 2017

 Continued work on the fleet maintenance center project.

 Continued design work on Fire Station 16 project with HEA.

 Began work on the Station 19 fire restoration project.

 Continued work on Station 19 replacement project, continued engagement with Clackamas
County staff.

 Facilitated Deputy Chief testing process.

 Participated in a forum with Battalion Chief candidates.

 Participated in the quarterly SOPS meeting.

 Continued preparation for FY 18 budget.

 Participated in a regional operational issues meeting.

 Chaired the Fire Users meeting at CCOM.

 Participated in the monthly C-800 meeting.

 Continued work on LMC issues with Local 1159.

 Continued bargaining process with Local 1159 for Single Role Medic position.

 Continued work on several personnel issues.

 Interviewed Apparatus Operator candidates.

 Interviewed Captain candidates.

 Worked on the June entry level firefighter academy.

 Finalized the Estacada Fire IGA.

Respectfully submitted,
Deputy Chief Ryan Hari

Emergency Services 

R-1c

1



 

 
 

 

Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Division Chief David Scheirman 

Re: Emergency Services Division Monthly Report – April 2017 
 

 

 
 Competed in Deputy Chief Process 
 Station 16 design project 
 Labor-Management meeting 
 Attend quarterly SOPs meeting 
 Met with shift BC in lieu of OPS meeting 
 Met with Captain on BC expectations for upcoming test 
 Met with FM Whitely , Lt Maxwell and AT Hopkins on mapping for the District 
 Monthly Board meeting 
 Budget meeting 
 Met on Altamonte access with FMO Whitely. 
 Personnel items 
 Chief’s interviews for AO and Captain. 
 Station 19 numerous meeting following the fire. 
 Shift roster  
 SOP updates and FRP reviews. 
 Renumbering project 
 Light Duty assignments: 

o Inspections 
o Safety projects 
o Training assistance 
o Surplus equipment sales 
o Boat repair delivery and pick up. 
o SOG review 

  
North Battalion – A Shift 
Battalion Chief Brian Burke 
 
 Assist with the Captain Exam 
 Meeting with Probationary Officers  
 Assist with vendor evaluations for new AVID system 
 Interview with Beavercreek Bulletin for information about Beavercreek Fire Station #10. 
 Participate in Volunteer Drill 
 Meeting with BC3 and DC Scheirman 

 
North Battalion – B Shift 
Battalion Chief Brian Rooney 
 
 4/7 Operations crews responded to multiple calls due to a high wind storm.  There were multiple 

lines down, trees into homes and wide scale power outages. 
 4/7 Commercial Fire-10554 Main Street Milwaukie- Crews found heavy smoke on arrival from a 

cooking fire.  Crews worked on evacuation and ventilation. 

Emergency Services 

2



 4/9 Residential Fire- 11606 SE Meadowgold Pl. At 0812 a task force was dispatched to for a 
possible residential fire.  T8 arrived to find smoke coming from the attic of the home.   E6, E7 and 
E19 went to work to secure a water supply, ladder the structure and stretch lines while BC2 
assumed command.  Salvage tarps were placed as the crews worked to pull ceiling and overhaul 
the involved areas.  A family of nine were home at the time when one of them noticed smoke coming 
from the bathroom and called 911, Red Cross was dispatched to assist with housing needs for the 
family of nine. The fire appeared to start near the bathroom ceiling fan and burned for a while before 
being noticed, the fire was investigated by DFM Dahlgren.  The district coverage officer was paged 
while en route to address district needs due to a simultaneous commercial fire in Oregon City. 

 4/16 Commercial Structure fire at station 19-  Station 19 fire due to electrical problem. 
 4//19 Person on fire- 12101 SE 82nd, At 2055 E1 and AMR were dispatched to a “person on fire” at 

12101 SE 82nd.  HR5 and BC2 were added to the call, crews arrived to find a man on the floor in the 
restaurant with burns to his head, torso and hands.  The patient was quickly loaded into the 
ambulance for care and on scene Rapid Sequence Intubation and was transported to Emanuel 
Burn Center.  Through the confusion the fire was reported to possibly be from an electrical problem 
from the victim’s laptop computer.   Crews smelled gasoline on scene and on the patients clothing 
and suspected it was a suicide attempt.  After viewing security video it became obvious that the 
patient was set on fire by an unknown person sitting behind him.  Video shows the suspect sitting 
down for a few minutes at the booth behind the victim before lighting some material on fire under 
the table, standing up pouring gasoline on the person and lighting him on fire.   The suspect left 
during the confusion before anyone knew what happened.  There were several citizen hero’s that 
came to the assistance of the patient and helped to extinguish the flames.  Our crews did an 
amazing job caring for a very critical patient during a stressful and confusing scene and working 
with staff and customers that witnessed the incident.   TIPS was requested for assistance and 
CCSO along with OSP and Fire Prevention are investigating the call.     

 4/4 Multi Company Drill- House Fire evolutions at the TC.   
 4/7 Target Solutions Training- EMS recertification, mentoring, BC Calendar 
 4/9 Probationary Lt. mentoring/meeting 
 4/13 Operations meeting with DC Scheirman 
 4/12/13- Captain Testing 
 4/16 Target Solutions Training- EMS recertification training. 
 4//27 Circle of Life celebration 
 4/27 Gaffney Lane neighborhood assoc. meeting- T16 and BC3 were present for the meeting 

discussed the new design for station 16, architects were there to present information regarding the 
design and construction. 

 4/28 Grand Jury Hearing- Attended a Grand Jury hearing regarding the Denny’s Fire with Lt. 
Goodrich 

 
  North Battalion – C Shift 
Battalion Chief Scott Carmony 
 
 Water Rescue – 15315 SE River Forest Drive, Milwaukie at 15:16 hours. Family in river after boat 

 capsized. Family Rescued by CCSO Boat and delivered to Oak Grove Boat Ramp and received 
 by AMR 

 Working with Logistics and Fleet to finalize the Company schedule for hose and ladder testing. 
 Testing Scheduled with third party testing agency for middle of June. 

 Participated in Lieutenant promotional testing during April 
 Hose and Nozzle committee attempting to meet through Email. Working on updating hydrant 

 equipment deployment methods and completing inventory on 2.5 inch nozzles for standardization. 
 New TDA equipment purchased 

 
South Battalion – A Shift 
Battalion Chief Ken Horn 
 
 April 9 – Commercial Fire 581 Holmes Lane: Crews responded to a reported apartment fire, 

smoke and flames seen. The Task force was upgraded to a 1st alarm commercial assignment by 
BC3. Upon arrival, crews found smoke showing from the Charley side, second story of the 3



apartment. Entry was made on the 1st floor, Alpha side with a Truck crew to the roof for 
ventilation. Fire attack and search were made simultaneously and the fire was quickly knocked 
down and brought under control. Crews were able to handle with two engines and the truck. 
Due to a second working fire in the district, the remainder of the box was recalled. No injuries 
reported. The cause was determined to be a candle lit by a young juvenile.  

 April 9 – Commercial Fire 592 Holmes Lane: Crews responded to a reported residential fire 
called in by a neighbor in the adjacent apartment complex. There was no hard address given 
and only a general description of the house. Due to this there was a delay in identifying the 
house. The first crew arrived at the back of the residence via the apartment complex entry. A 
small fence was breached to make access to the house. Concurrently, T-16 arrived at the Alpha 
side of the house and made entry through the front door. The fire was contained to the kitchen 
area and was extinguished using two water cans. The residents were home, but outside during 
the fire. No injuries reported. Crews on scene: E-15, E-17, T-16, BC2, BC3.  

 April 9 – Mutual Aide given 25301 Elwood Rd, Colton: Crews responded to a barn fire in Colton. 
Water tenders were requested and WT 14, WT10, BR10, WT11, and BC3 responded. Upon 
arrival, water tender crews assisted with shuttling water to the fire scene and BR10’s crew 
assisted with fire operations. One minor injury to a finger was reported.  

 Participated in the Down & Dirty, Multi-Company drills scheduled for the month.   
 Attended the Easter Egg Hunt held at Rivercrest Park, Oregon City. E-15 crew sounded the 

horn to start the event and handed out helmets, stickers, and gave tours of the Engine.  
 Attended the grand opening of the Bistro at the Oregon City train station and the bike safety 

event.   
 
South Battalion – B Shift 
Battalion Chief Jonathan Scheirman 
 
 Made several station visits and provided crews with Ops notes.  
 Completed my Paramedic recertification. 
 Attended “Down and Dirty” house fire drills. 
 Completed resume reviews for the Captain’s promotional process. 
 Helped Training prepare the Wildland update for this year’s fire season. 
 Attended practical evaluations for probationary AO and FF.  
 Attended the State Fire Marshal Office IMT Conference in Hood River. 
 Attended four days of training for All Hazard Incident Safety Officer. 
 There was a significant wind event on April 7th that kept crews throughout the entire Fire District 

busy on trees into buildings, wires down and various other call types generated by the storm. 
 Vehicle into a building @ Main and McLoughlin in Oregon City. An early morning crash involving 

a car and a building turned into a several hour event due to the car taking out the gas meter. 
Several businesses were filled with natural gas and had to be systematically ventilated once the 
gas was able to be shut off by NW Natural. The building also had to be shored by District USAR 
team members once the vehicle was removed. 

 Commercial Fire @ Station 19. Easter Sunday morning the crews from Station 19 had to fight a 
fire at their own station due to an electrical issue on a PGE pole. I’m sure there is no need to 
elaborate further on this one. 

 
South Battalion – C Shift 
Battalion Chief Oscar Ramos 
 
 Assisted Human Resources with coordination and layout of upcoming Captain’s promotional 

exam in first part of the month 
 Attended Senior staff meetings 
 Assisted crews on scene of male who was helping neighbors cut down a 40’ tree in their 

backyard.  When male cut the top the tree swayed and male fell 40’ to the ground – Life Flight 
unable to fly due to weather. 

 Took two shifts off during the month 
 Spent most of one week assisting with Captain’s test for a successful exam 
 Completed EMS recertification hours for the biennium 4



 Met with various crews at drills and in stations for table talks. 
 Caught up on video Target Solution training 

 
Light Duty 
Battalion Chief Brian Stewart 
 
 Attended OFIA conference 
 Taught “How Training Impacts Safety” at OFIA conference 
 Attended OSFM Incident Management Team conference 
 Attended E/L 954 All Hazard Incident Safety Officer course 
 Attended weekly staff meetings 
 Metro Fire Safety Officers Association meeting 
 Drafting/revising procedures 

 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Division Chief David Scheirman  

5



Data

EMS 1258

False 89

Fire 24

Good Int 186

Hazard Cond. 172

Other 1

Pub Asst 225

Rupt/Exp/Weather 4

Grand Total 1959

Incident Type 2015 2016 2017

EMS 14577 15339 5372
False 847 801 283
Fire 636 479 122
Good Int 2053 2011 693
Hazard Cond. 1409 1459 567
Other 10 6 2
Pub Asst 2296 2332 819
Rupt/Exp/Weather 14 4 7
Grand Total 21842 22431 7865

Clackamas Fire Dist. #1 Emergency Services Report

Mutual Aid Given Incident Not Included

Incident Type

April 2017

Year to Date

EMS
64%

False
5%

Fire
1%

Good Int
10%

Hazard 
Cond.

9%

Other
0%

Pub Asst
11%

Rupt/Exp/Other
0%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
BFD 2016 125 116 136 127 123 142 165 152 129 144 127 151
CFD 2016 1681 1646 1726 1671 1722 1742 1762 1873 1707 1682 1673 1909
CFD 2017 2275 1768 1863 1959

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Total Incidents by Month

6



Incident 
Type

URBAN
CFD#1 

Performance

 # of Resp. 
Included in 
Calculation 

CFAI 
Baseline

 # of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Baseline 

% of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Baseline

CFAI 
Benchmark

 # of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Benchmark 

% of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Benchmark

Alarm Handling 1:31 1079 1:30 945 87.58% 1:00 852 78.96% Mean 5:46
Turn Out Time 2:12 1285 1:30 841 65.45% 1:00 430 33.46% Median 5:41

Urban Travel Time 6:09 620 5:12 506 81.61% 4:00 353 56.94% Minimum 0:51
Urban Total Response Time 7:59 620 8:12 564 90.97% 6:00 365 58.87% Maximum 18:31

*URBAN: Stations 1, 2, 3, 15, 16

Incident 
Type

SUBURBAN
CFD#1 

Performance

 # of Resp. 
Included in 
Calculation 

CFAI 
Baseline

 # of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Baseline 

% of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Baseline

CFAI 
Benchmark

 # of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Benchmark 

% of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Benchmark

Alarm Handling 1:25 709 1:30 633 89.28% 1:00 560 78.98% Mean 5:58
Turn Out Time 2:05 814 1:30 551 67.69% 1:00 301 36.98% Median 5:48

Suburban Travel Time 6:24 408 6:30 368 90.20% 5:00 289 70.83% Minimum 0:02
Suburban Total Response Time 8:31 408 9:30 393 96.32% 7:00 307 75.25% Maximum 14:58

*SUBURBAN: Stations 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 17, 19

Incident 
Type

RURAL
CFD#1 

Performance

 # of Resp. 
Included in 
Calculation 

CFAI 
Baseline

 # of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Baseline 

% of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Baseline

CFAI 
Benchmark

 # of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Benchmark 

% of Resp. 
Meeting 

CFAI 
Benchmark

Alarm Handling 1:27 171 1:30 153 89.47% 1:00 139 81.29% Mean 8:31
Turn Out Time 2:21 242 1:30 170 70.25% 1:00 104 42.98% Median 8:23

Rural Travel Time 10:24 92 13:00 88 95.65% 10:00 82 89.13% Minimum 0:02
Rural Total Response Time 12:40 92 16:00 89 96.74% 12:00 81 88.04% Maximum 16:18

*RURAL: Stations 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 18, 20

Alarm Handling:  All Incidents Dispatched

Turn Out Time:  All Priority Types/Only District Units Dispatched

Travel Time: Based off time of First Arriving unit. (includes AMR and outside agency’s)

All

Clackamas Fire Priority Response Performance

April 2017

Rural Total 
Response Time 

Summary

Suburban Total 
Response Time 

Summary

Urban Total 
Response Time 

Summary

All 

All 

7



 
 

  
 

April 2017 Incident Summary

1

3

17

27

137

365

708

Water & ice related rescue, other

Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped)

Emergency medical service, other

Vehicle accident with injuries

EMS (emergency medical call),Rescue, other

Medical assist, assist EMS crew

EMS/Rescue (Full Chart)

EMS Total: 1258

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

3

3

3

5

Chimney of Fuel Fire, Confined to Chimney or Flue

OUTSIDE rubbish fire, other

Special outside fire, other

Barkdust fire

Natural vegetation fire, other

OUTSIDE rubbish, trash or waste fire

OUTSIDE Dumpster or other trash receptacle fire

Cooking Fire, Confined to Container

Fire, other

Passenger vehicle fire

Building Fire

Fire Total:  24

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

5

6

14

55

Unintentional transmission of alarm, other

Malicious, mischievous false call, other

Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO

System malfunction, other

Smoke detector activation due to malfunction

Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional

Alarm system sounded, no fire - unintentional

Medical alarm - False alarm - unintentional

False Alarm, Testing/Malfunction of System, other

False Fire/Medical Alarm, other

False Alarm Total: 89

1

4

Citizen complaint

Wind storm, tornado/hurricane assessment
Weather/Rupture/Explosion/Other Total: 5

8



  
 

1
1
1

3
3

5
8
9
10

18
26

30
43

67

Water or steam leak
Water evacuation (not people evacuation)

Animal rescue
Person in distress, other

Water problem, other
Smoke or odor problem/removal

Service Call, other
Public service

Lock-out
Assist police or other governmental agency

Police matter
Public service assistance, other

Unauthorized burning
Assist invalid

Public Assists Total: 225

1

1

2

2

2

3

4

5

6

68

78

Hazardous condition, other

Chemical spill or leak

Arcing, shorted electrical equipment

Building or structure weakened or collapsed

Heat from short circuit (wiring), defective/worn…

Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other

Vehicle accident, general cleanup

Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill (Class 1)

Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

Power line down

Accident, potential accident, other (NON-Inj. MVA)

Hazardous Condition Total: 172

1

1

1

2

2

6

7

12

12

16

17

28

37

44

EMS call, party transported by non-fire agency

Prescribed fire

Wrong location

Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke

Steam, other gas mistaken for smoke, other

Authorized controlled burning

Hazardous Cond. Incident Dispatched & Canceled En Route

Other Type Incident Dispatched & Canceled En Route

Smoke scare, odor of smoke, not steam (652)

No incident found on arrival at dispatch address

Good intent call, other

Fire Incident Dispatched & Canceled En Route

False Alarm Incident Dispatched & Canceled En Route

EMS Incident Dispatched & Canceled En Route

Good Intent Total:  186

9



Mutual Aid Given to Mutual Aid Received by Agency

Gi
ve

n,
 1

1

Gi
ve

n,
 4

Gi
ve

n,
 9

Gi
ve

n,
 6

Gi
ve

n,
 2

Gi
ve

n,
 0

Gi
ve

n,
 0 Gi

ve
n,

 3

Gi
ve

n,
 7

Gi
ve

n,
 6

Gi
ve

n,
 5

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 0

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 0

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 1
3

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 3

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 2

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 0

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 1

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 2

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 5

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 1
1

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 3

C A N B Y C O L T O N E S T A C A D A G L A D S T O N E G R E S H A M H O O D L A N D L A K E  
O S W E G O

M O L A L L A P O R T L A N D  S A N D Y T V F R

APRIL  2017

Gi
ve

n,
 4

4

Gi
ve

n,
 6

Gi
ve

n,
 2

6

Gi
ve

n,
 3

4

Gi
ve

n,
 8

Gi
ve

n,
 0

Gi
ve

n,
 0

Gi
ve

n,
 3

3

Gi
ve

n,
 3

7

Gi
ve

n,
 2

7

Gi
ve

n,
 1

6

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 7

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 3

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 6
1

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 1
9

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 1
1

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 0

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 4

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 1
5

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 2
3

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 4
0

Re
ce

iv
ed

, 8

C A N B Y C O L T O N E S T A C A D A G L A D S T O N E G R E S H A M H O O D L A N D L A K E  O S W E G O M O L A L L A P O R T L A N D  S A N D Y T V F R

2017  YEAR T O DAT E

11

8

13

9

5

0 0

7
8 10

10

0 0

14

3
2

0
1

3
5

12

4

Canby Colton Estacada Gladstone Gresham Hoodland Lake Oswego Molalla Portland Sandy TVFR

April Aid Give
Apparatus Responses

10



Agency Apparatus Apparatus Action Responses
Canby E14 Cancelled en route 1

M16 Cancelled en route 5
Provide advanced life support (ALS) 1

E17 Cancelled at Scene 1
Cancelled en route 2
Provide manpower 1

Canby Total 11
Colton BC3 Assistance, other 1

Cancelled en route 3
BR10 Provide manpower 1
WT10 Provide water 1
WT11 Provide water 1
WT14 Provide water 1

Colton Total 8
Estacada BC2 Cancelled en route 1

E7 Cancelled en route 1
E11 Cancelled en route 1
E14 Cancelled en route 4

(blank) 1
E19 Provide advanced life support (ALS) 2
WR28 Cancelled en route 1
BR18 Assistance, other 1

Cancelled at Scene 1
Estacada Total 13
Gladstone BC2 Cancelled en route 1

BC3 Cancelled en route 1
E3 Cancelled en route 2
M3 Cancelled at Scene 1

Cancelled en route 1
Provide advanced life support (ALS) 1

HR5 Cancelled en route 1
WR8 Cancelled en route 1

Gladstone Total 9
Gresham BC4 Cancelled en route 1

HR5 Cancelled en route 1
E14 Cancelled en route 1

Standby/Staged 1
WT14 Cancelled en route 1

Gresham Total 5
Molalla BC3 Standby/Staged 1

E9 Fill-in or moveup 1
E10 Cancelled en route 1

Salvage & overhaul 1
M16 Cancelled en route 1
BR10 Cancelled en route 1
WT10 Salvage & overhaul 1

Molalla Total 7
Portland T2 Cancelled at Scene 1

Cancelled en route 2
Standby/Staged 1

E6 Cancelled en route 1
HR5 Cancelled en route 1
E7 Cancelled en route 2

Portland Total 8

Mutual Aid Given - Apparatus Overview
April 2017

11



Sandy BC2 Assistance, other 1
E14 Assistance, other 3

Cancelled at Scene 2
RIT 1

BR18 Assistance, other 1
RH14 Assistance, other 1
WT18 Assistance, other 1

Sandy Total 10
TVFR BC3 Cancelled en route 2

E9 Cancelled en route 1
E15 Cancelled en route 2

Provide manpower 1
UTL  Unable to Locate 1

E17 Cancelled en route 3
TVFR Total 10
Grand Total 81

12



Incident 
Station Incident Type Total Incident 

Station Incident Type Total Incident 
Station Incident Type Total

S1 EMS 141 S8 EMS 71 S16 EMS 120
False 5 False 10 False 4
Fire 6 Fire 3 Fire 1
Good Int 21 Good Int 12 Good Int 11
Hazard Condition 13 Hazard Condition 13 Hazard Condition 8
Pub Asst 30 Pub Asst 10 Pub Asst 24
Weather 1 S8 Total 119 S16 Total 168

S1 Total 217 S9 EMS 22 S17 EMS 42
S2 EMS 110 False 1 False 1

False 7 Fire 1 Fire 2
Good Int 19 Good Int 6 Good Int 5
Hazard Condition 13 Hazard Condition 5 Hazard Condition 5
Pub Asst 17 Pub Asst 7 Pub Asst 6
Weather 2 S9 Total 42 S17 Total 61

S2 Total 168 S10 EMS 22 S18 EMS 10
S3 EMS 229 Fire 1 False 2

False 17 Good Int 4 Good Int 5
Fire 2 Hazard Condition 6 Hazard Condition 3
Good Int 37 Pub Asst 6 Pub Asst 2
Hazard Condition 27 S10 Total 39 S18 Total 22
Pub Asst 53 S11 EMS 13 S19 EMS 29

S3 Total 365 False 1 False 5
S4 EMS 125 Good Int 4 Fire 1

False 13 Hazard Condition 6 Good Int 3
Fire 1 Pub Asst 3 Hazard Condition 9
Good Int 9 S11 Total 27 Pub Asst 2
Hazard Condition 14 S12 EMS 5 S19 Total 49
Other 1 Good Int 1 S20 EMS 6
Pub Asst 17 Hazard Condition 4 Good Int 1

S4 Total 180 Pub Asst 1 Hazard Condition 1
S5 EMS 76 S12 Total 11 Pub Asst 1

False 4 S13 Hazard Condition 3 S20 Total 9
Good Int 11 S13 Total 3 Grand Total 1959
Hazard Condition 7 S14 EMS 30
Pub Asst 11 False 3

S5 Total 109 Fire 2
S6 EMS 88 Good Int 7

False 5 Hazard Condition 11
Fire 1 Pub Asst 7
Good Int 10 S14 Total 60
Hazard Condition 6 S15 EMS 108
Pub Asst 12 False 6

S6 Total 122 Fire 3
S7 EMS 11 Good Int 17

False 5 Hazard Condition 12
Good Int 3 Pub Asst 14
Hazard Condition 6 Weather 1
Pub Asst 2 S15 Total 161

S7 Total 27

Incident Types 
by FMZ

April 2017

13



April 2017

Incident Count by FMZ

Year to Date

3 9 11 22 27 27 39 42 49 60 61

109 119 122
161 168 168 180

217

365

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

S13 S20 S12 S18 S7 S11 S10 S9 S19 S14 S17 S5 S8 S6 S15 S2 S16 S4 S1 S3

20 36 48 89 102 132 153 187 206 212 251
411

483 483
582 594

751
833

956

1336

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

S13 S20 S12 S18 S11 S7 S10 S19 S17 S9 S14 S6 S5 S8 S15 S4 S2 S16 S1 S3

14



Unit Station Unit ID Incident Type Total

BC2 BC2 EMS 2
Good Int 7
Pub Asst 2
Fire 11
HazMat 7

BC2 Total 29
BC2 Total 29
BC3 BC3 EMS 3

False 2
Good Int 6
Pub Asst 3
Fire 9
HazMat 7
Weather 1

BC3 Total 31
BC3 Total 31
BC4 BC4 EMS 4

Good Int 1
Pub Asst 1
Fire 1
HazMat 2

BC4 Total 9
BC4 Total 9
S1 E1 EMS 152

False 6
Good Int 22
Pub Asst 27
Fire 7
HazMat 17
Weather 3

E1 Total 234
S1 Total 234
S2 RH2 Good Int 1

Fire 1
RH2 Total 2
T2 EMS 112

False 9
Good Int 24
Pub Asst 21
Fire 9
HazMat 13
Weather 1

T2 Total 189
S2 Total 191
S3 E3 EMS 86

False 13
Good Int 31
Pub Asst 38
Fire 3
HazMat 24

E3 Total 195
M3 EMS 211

False 2
Good Int 9
Pub Asst 33
Fire 3
HazMat 6

M3 Total 264
S3 Total 459

Apparatus Response by Station and Incident Type
(Including Mutual Aid Given)

April 2017

15



Unit Station Unit ID Incident Type Total

S4 E4 EMS 134
False 15
Good Int 17
Pub Asst 16
Fire 6
HazMat 13
Other 1

E4 Total 202
S4 Total 202
S5 HR5 EMS 92

False 3
Good Int 21
Pub Asst 19
Fire 10
HazMat 16

HR5 Total 161
S5 Total 161
S6 E6 EMS 94

False 5
Good Int 16
Pub Asst 14
Fire 3
HazMat 10

E6 Total 142
S6 Total 142
S7 E7 EMS 24

False 6
Good Int 6
Pub Asst 7
Fire 5
HazMat 9

E7 Total 57
HM27 EMS 1

HazMat 1
HM27 Total 2

S7 Total 59
S8 T8 EMS 78

False 7
Good Int 17
Pub Asst 17
Fire 5
HazMat 19

T8 Total 143
WR28 Good Int 1
WR28 Total 1
BT8 Good Int 1
BT8 Total 1
WR8 EMS 2
WR8 Total 2

S8 Total 147

16



Unit Station Unit ID Incident Type Total

S9 E9 EMS 33
False 2
Good Int 7
Pub Asst 14
Fire 5
HazMat 12

E9 Total 73
S9 Total 73
S10 BR10 Good Int 3

Fire 3
BR10 Total 6
E10 EMS 33

Good Int 6
Pub Asst 6
Fire 2
HazMat 11

E10 Total 58
WT10 Good Int 1

Fire 2
HazMat 1

WT10 Total 4
S10 Total 68
S11 E11 EMS 18

False 1
Good Int 5
Pub Asst 3
HazMat 11

E11 Total 38
WT11 Fire 1

HazMat 1
WT11 Total 2

S11 Total 40
S12 BR12 EMS 3

HazMat 1
BR12 Total 4
WT12 Good Int 1
WT12 Total 1

S12 Total 5
S13 BR13 EMS 7

BR13 Total 7
E13 EMS 1
E13 Total 1

S13 Total 8
S14 E14 EMS 48

False 7
Good Int 12
Pub Asst 9
Fire 5
HazMat 11

E14 Total 92
RH14 Fire 1
RH14 Total 1
WT14 Good Int 1

Fire 2
WT14 Total 3

S14 Total 96
S15 E15 EMS 92

False 6
Good Int 18
Pub Asst 14
Fire 6
HazMat 12

E15 Total 148
S15 Total 148

17



Unit Station Unit ID Incident Type Total

S16 E16 EMS 1
E16 Total 1
M16 EMS 63

False 1
Good Int 4
Pub Asst 7

M16 Total 75
T16 EMS 88

False 4
Good Int 12
Pub Asst 19
Fire 5
HazMat 10

T16 Total 138
S16 Total 214
S17 E17 EMS 61

False 1
Good Int 10
Pub Asst 8
Fire 6
HazMat 9

E17 Total 95
S17 Total 95
S18 BR18 EMS 12

False 1
Good Int 1
Fire 1
HazMat 1

BR18 Total 16
E18 EMS 2

False 1
E18 Total 3
WT18 Fire 1
WT18 Total 1

S18 Total 20
S19 BR19 Good Int 1

HazMat 1
BR19 Total 2
E19 EMS 30

False 5
Good Int 4
Pub Asst 7
Fire 3
HazMat 17

E19 Total 66
S19 Total 68
(blank) C1 Fire 1

C1 Total 1
C4 EMS 1
C4 Total 1
C7 EMS 3
C7 Total 3
PREV3 Fire 1
PREV3 Total 1
PREV5 Fire 1
PREV5 Total 1
PREV7 Pub Asst 1

Fire 4
PREV7 Total 5
PREV9 Fire 2
PREV9 Total 2
PREV11 Fire 1
PREV11 Total 1
TRNG3 HazMat 1
TRNG3 Total 1

(blank) Total 16
Grand Total 251518



(Including Mutual Aid Given)
April 2017

Incident Response by Apparatus

264

234

202 195 189

161
148 143 142 138

95 92
75 73 66 58 57

38 31 29
16

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

M3 E1 E4 E3 T2 HR5 E15 T8 E6 T16 E17 E14 M16 E9 E19 E10 E7 E11 BC3 BC2 BR18

9

7

6

5

4 4

3 3 3

2 2 2 2 2 2

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

19



Incident Response by Apparatus
(Including Mutual Aid Given)

Year to Date 2017

1 3 7 27
128 133 151 177

252 256 267 273
331 331 345 376 384 392

478
558

723 739 763 800

992 1040

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

R15 E8 EMS3 BC4 BC3 BC2 E11 E19 E10 E7 T15 E15 E17 T16 E9 M16 E16 E14 E6 T8 E4 HR5 E3 T2 E1 M3

1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 4 5
7 7

9

16

0

5

10

15

20

2 2 3 5 6 8 8 8 10
13 15

19 21

31
34

45
48

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

BR14 WT12 WT18 BR11 WT14 E13 RH2 WT11 RH14 WT10 E18 BR10 BR9 BR12 BR13 BR19 BR18

1

3
4

10

13

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

BT28 WR28 BT8 WR8 HM27

20



Station  Date Activity Notes

Misc Vol Meeting Total Station 4 ‐ Captain Hopkins

Station 4 4/7/2017 13:45 Move‐up to CCFD Station for 

Incident

Move‐up to Station 4 for commercial 

struture fire. 

Station 4 4/9/2017 7:30 Grounds Maint: mowing, edging, 

washing

(blank)

Station 4 4/13/2017 7:30 Company Inspections (blank)

Station 4 4/19/2017 7:30 Company Inspections (blank)

Station 4 4/19/2017 7:30 Detail Target hazard checks 

Station 4 4/19/2017 7:30 Lock Box Program checked two lockboxes 

Station 4 Total Station 7 ‐ Captain Carlsen

Station 7 4/1/2017 10:30 Cleaning of Apparatus (blank)

Station 7 4/1/2017 11:00 Weekly Apparatus Check (blank)

Station 7 4/1/2017 12:15 Apparatus Inventory (blank)

Station 7 4/1/2017 13:00 Weekly Station Generator Check (blank)

Station 7 4/3/2017 10:30 HAZMAT Program Meeting with fleet re:  new vehicle.

Station 7 4/4/2017 7:30 Cardiac Monitor Check & Data 

Download

(blank)

Station 7 4/4/2017 7:30 Weekly Station Duties (blank)

Station 7 4/6/2017 13:30 Meeting with someone other than 

BC

(blank)

Station 7 4/6/2017 14:30 HAZMAT Program (blank)

Station 7 4/7/2017 7:30 Cardiac Monitor Check & Data 

Download

(blank)

Station 7 4/7/2017 7:30 Monthly SCBA Checks (blank)

Station 7 4/7/2017 7:30 Wash Apparatus (blank)

Station 7 4/7/2017 7:30 Weekly Apparatus Check Hazmat truck 27

Station 7 4/7/2017 7:30 Weekly Station Duties (blank)

Station 7 4/8/2017 7:30 Cardiac Monitor Check & Data 

Download

(blank)

Station 7 4/8/2017 7:30 Weekly Apparatus Check (blank)

Station 7 4/8/2017 7:30 Weekly Station Duties (blank)

Station 7 4/8/2017 7:30 Weekly Station Generator Check (blank)

Station 7 4/9/2017 10:30 Wash Apparatus (blank)

Station 7 4/9/2017 14:30 Fuel Apparatus

Station 7 4/10/2017 9:30 HAZMAT Program (blank)

Station 7 4/10/2017 13:30 HAZMAT Program Molalla fire outreach preperation 

Station 7 4/13/2017 7:30 Cardiac Monitor Check & Data 

Download

(blank)

Station 7 4/13/2017 7:30 Monthly Station Duties (blank)

Station 7 4/13/2017 7:30 Weekly Station Duties (blank)

Station 7 4/16/2017 7:30 Cardiac Monitor Check & Data 

Download

(blank)

Station Reports by Captain 

Apr‐17

21



Station 4 Total Station 7 Continued

Station 7 4/25/2017 7:30 Cardiac Monitor Check & Data 

Download

(blank)

Station 7 4/25/2017 17:30 Meeting with someone other than 

BC

Meeting with Kim from Kaiser to 

prepare for decon drill 05/13/17

Station 7 4/27/2017 13:00 HAZMAT Program (blank)

Station 7 4/30/2017 11:30 HAZMAT Program Hazmat 27 build out miscellaneous 

duties

Station 7 4/30/2017 12:30 Grounds Maint: mowing, edging, 

washing

(blank)

Station 7 Total Station 8 ‐ Captain Ellison

Station 8 4/7/2017 14:30 Boat Maintenance Replacement of transducer on Almar 

BT8

Station 8 4/9/2017 9:00 Move‐up to CCFD Station for 

Incident

(blank)

Station 8 4/25/2017 7:30 Fuel Apparatus

Station 8 4/25/2017 13:00 Apparatus Maintenance Fleet replaced two fron tires on engine 

7

Station 8 Total Station 9 ‐ Captain Guttman

Station 9 4/2/2017 7:00 FTEP (blank)

Station 9 4/9/2017 16:30 Physical Fitness (blank)

Station 9 4/12/2017 10:00 Company Inspections Target Hazard Survey of Holcomb 

Elemenrtry 

Station 9 4/12/2017 15:00 Company Inspections Target Hazard Survey Clackamas Youth 

School 

Station 9 4/24/2017 7:45 Daily Burn Line Information (blank)

Station 9 4/24/2017 14:00 Cleaning of Apparatus Deep cleaned and waxed E9

Station 9 4/24/2017 14:00 Wax Apparatus Waxed and polished E9

Station 9 4/24/2017 17:30 Physical Fitness (blank)

Station 9 Total Station 10 ‐ Captain Rector

Station 10 4/9/2017 20:00 Move‐up to CCFD Station for 

Incident

Moved up to Station 10 per BC3 

request for a large workign fire in 

Colton. 

Station 10 4/22/2017 11:30 Wash Apparatus (blank)

Station 10  Station 14 ‐ Captain Damm
Station 14 4/6/2017 8:30 Move‐up for Training Activity (blank)

Station 14 4/8/2017 13:00 Weekly Apparatus Check (blank)

Station 14 Total Station 15 ‐ Captain Welk

Station 15 4/21/2017 7:45 Employee on the job injury FF Zieverink injured shoulder while 

moving gurney on EMS call. As of now 

he is not seeking medical help but he 

is documenting it per policy. 

Station 15 4/29/2017 10:00 Fuel Apparatus

Station 15 4/29/2017 10:45 Weekly Apparatus Check (blank)

Station 15  Station 17 ‐ Captain Bishop

Station 17 4/24/2017 7:30 Impact on Mission Readiness (blank)

22



Station 

FMZ
Address Incident 

Number Alarm Date Incident Type Apparatus Apparatus Action Taken

S1 12101 SE 82nd Ave  1707765 4/19/2017 20:55 Fire, other BC2 Incident command

E1 Provide advanced life support (ALS)

HR5 Investigate fire out on arrival

M274 Transport person

PREV7 FMO Investigation

PREV3 FMO Investigation

12101 SE 82nd Ave  Total

8607 SE Causey Ave  1706626 4/4/2017 18:20 Fire, other BC2 Incident command

E1 Extinguish

E4 Standby/Staged

HR5 Extinguish

T2 Standby/Staged

8607 SE Causey Ave  Total

SE Monterey Ave at SE 82nd Ave 1708179 4/26/2017 14:40 Vehicle accident with injuries BC4 Provide manpower

E1 Provide manpower

HR5 Provide manpower

M261 Provide manpower

M273 Transport person

SE Monterey Ave at SE 82nd Ave Total

10672 SE 78th Ave  1706364 4/1/2017 0:39 Building Fire BC2 Incident command

E1 Fire Attack

E4 Standby team

HR5 Search & rescue, other

PREV7 FMO Investigation

PREV9 FMO Investigation

T2 Ventilate

S2 Total

S3 SE Risley Ave at SE Oatfield Rd 1706687 4/5/2017 17:43 Vehicle accident with injuries BC2 Safety Officer

E3 Provide basic life support (BLS)

HR5 Extricate, disentangle

M265 Transport person

SE Risley Ave at SE Oatfield Rd Total

15315 SE River Forest Dr  1706466 4/2/2017 15:16 Water & ice related rescue, other BC2 Assistance, other

E3 Assistance, other

M269 (blank)

M296 (blank)

15315 SE River Forest Dr  Total

S3 Total

S4 13481 SE Johnson Rd  1706594 4/4/2017 10:21 Smoke or odor problem/removal BC2 Standby/Staged

E1 Assistance, other

E19 Assistance, other

HR5 Assistance, other

T8 Incident command

13481 SE Johnson Rd  Total

S4 Total

S8 11606 SE Meadowgold Plac  1707065 4/9/2017 8:13 Building Fire BC2 Incident command

E19 Standby/Staged

E4 Fill‐in or moveup

E6 Fire Attack

E7 Fill‐in or moveup

Salvage & overhaul

PREV9 FMO Investigation

T8 Extinguish

11606 SE Meadowgold Plac  Total

15576 SE Thornbridge Dr  1708339 4/28/2017 22:22 Heat from short circuit (wiring), defective/worn in BC2 Cancelled at Scene

E6 Investigate

E7 Cancelled at Scene

HR5 Cancelled at Scene

15576 SE Thornbridge Dr  Total

S8 Total

S10 25000 S Newkirchner Rd  1707333 4/13/2017 15:15 Heat from short circuit (wiring), defective/worn in BC3 Cancelled at Scene

E10 Investigate

E17 Cancelled at Scene

HR5 Cancelled at Scene

WT11 Cancelled at Scene

T16 Cancelled at Scene

25000 S Newkirchner Rd  Total

S10 Total

S14 8995 SE Telford Rd  1707359 4/14/2017 6:51 Assist police or other governmental agency E14 Assist lift patient

Cancelled at Scene

HR5 Assist lift patient

M336 Investigate

8995 SE Telford Rd  Total

SE HWY 26 at SE Orient Dr 1707805 4/20/2017 13:36 Vehicle accident with injuries C4 Safety Officer

E14 Provide advanced life support (ALS)

E19 Provide basic life support (BLS)

E7 Hazardous materials spill control and confinement

E74 Provide basic life support (BLS)

HM27 Hazmat detection, monitoring, sampling, & analysis

M263 Transport person

M264 Transport person

M270 Transport person

R71 (blank)

SE HWY 26 at SE Orient Dr Total

S14 Total

S15 581 Holmes Ln  1707064 4/9/2017 8:11 Building Fire BC3 Incident command

E15 Fire Attack

E17 Provide manpower

E58 Cancelled at Scene

E9 Cancelled at Scene

M3 Cancelled at Scene

PREV7 FMO Investigation

T16 Search

581 Holmes Ln  Total

S15 Total

Significant Incidents by Station 
Apr-2017

With 4 or More Apparatus

23



Station 

FMZ
Address Incident 

Number Alarm Date Incident Type Apparatus Apparatus Action Taken

S16 592 Holmes Ln 1707088 4/9/2017 15:10 Building Fire BC2 Incident command

BC3 Safety Officer

E15 Backup team

E17 Provide manpower

E9 Fire Attack

PREV7 FMO Investigation

T16 Search & rescue, other

592 Holmes Ln Total

S16 Total

S19 20100 SE Hwy 212   1707498 4/16/2017 7:32 Building Fire BC2 Incident command

BC3 Safety Officer

BC4 Establish safe area

E14 Backup team

E19 Incident command

E7 Fire Attack

EG73 RIT

HR5 Salvage & overhaul

PREV5 FMO Investigation

RH2 Provide manpower

T8 Ventilate

PREV11 FMO Investigation

C1 Provide manpower

20100 SE Hwy 212   Total

S19 Total

24



Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors

From: EMS Division Chief Bill Conway

Re: Emergency Medical Services Division Monthly Report – April 2017

The following summary of work includes those activities completed within the EMS Division. Additional
reports are included from the Emergency Manager, Community Paramedic, EMS Training Officer, as well
as the monthly community CPR report from Cascade.

 Attended Fire District quarterly SOPS meeting
 Attended Labor/Management meeting
 One OHSU Resident Ride Along
 Met with Providence Medical Group and Health Share regarding additional patients for

Community Paramedic program
 Attended Oregon Fire Based EMS Task Force meeting in Cottage Grove
 Participated in bargaining with Labor regarding Single Role paramedic
 Attended E team budget meeting
 Attended Fire District Board of Directors meeting
 Met with Lake Oswego Fire and AMR regarding video project for educating assisted living

facilities in the proper use of 911
 Participated in Dodgeball fundraiser benefiting Milwaukie High School
 Attended Clackamas County EMS Council Meeting.
 Hosted the 4th Clackamas Fire Chain of Survival Challenge Coin celebration at the Willamette

Falls Community Center. Nine saves were honored and four survivors attended.

Respectfully submitted,
EMS Division Chief Bill Conway

Emergency Services 

25



Emergency Services Division 
To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: EMS Training Officer Mike Verkest 

Re: Emergency Medical Services Division Monthly Report – April 2017 

• Participated in the PART trial that continued, as we are on ETT for our airway device.
• Finished up Career EMS Recertification process.
• Ambulance and Agency Relicensing process completed with OHA.
• MIHC Protocol Sub-Committee meeting. Protocols being developed for national distribution.
• Planning continues for the Community Paramedic Symposium 2.0 for 2017. Date set for May

22, 23, and 24 to be held at the Oregon Institute of Technology.
• Continued Peer Chart review. Process improvement strategies being implemented.
• Attended the monthly Training Division Staff meeting.
• Clackamas Fire Volunteer EMS Drill – Dr. Warden performed case reviews.
• East Clackamas County EMS Association held the Timberline EMS Conference. Great turn out

with over 170 attendees.
• Continued Coordination and Training for ADORE FTEP program software integration. We have

added an Academy as well as A/O, Captain, and Lieutenant Sections for Tracking Probation.
• Continued to work on the SOP for EMS Field Training and Evaluation.
• Clackamas Fire District #1 continues to Field Test LUCAS3 Mechanical CPR Device on M3
• Inventory and PM Checkups beginning for the Zoll AutoPulse. Working with Dr. Warden on

possible redeployment plan.
• Academy 17-02 planning session.
• Chaired the Tri-County Protocol Development meeting in Dr. Warden’s absence.
• Attended AMR CQI meeting.
• Served at the Chain of Survival Celebration in Oregon City on April 27, 2017.

Respectfully submitted, 
EMS Training Officer Mike Verkest 

Emergency Services 

26



Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Community Paramedic AmyJo Cook 

Re: Community Paramedic Monthly Report - April 2017 

 Assisted Adult Protective Services and Centerstone on a home visit community outreach
 Attended Elder training at St. Vincent Hospital
 Attend monthly Information & Resource (I&R) meeting for Clackamas County
 Attended monthly Community Paramedicine(MIHP) meeting with consortium partners.
 Assisted community member with disability application at social security building
 Attended care team meeting for community member recently into permanent housing
 Conducted 5 home visits for enrolled patients
 Attended resource meeting with Home Instead care coordinator
 Assisted client with approval/screening for in home services
 Conducted 5 home visits of crew referred clients
 Assist Community member with obtaining eye wear and appointment
 Attended heart failure class by Care Oregon
 Attended monthly Vulnerable Adults meeting
 Conducted patient outreach for Emergency Room Use Reduction
 Attended seminar for setting boundaries with patients/work
 Attended frequent user planning meeting

Respectfully submitted, 
Community Paramedic AmyJo Cook 

Emergency Services 

27



Station	2 Station	3 Station	4 Station	5 Station	7 Station	10 Station	15
BLS	HCP 2
HS	FA,	CPR	&	AED 1
HS	CPR	&	AED 1
HS	FA		 1

Station	2 Station	3 Station	4 Station	5 Station	7 Station	10 Station	15
BLS	HCP 22
HS	FA,	CPR	&	AED 4
HS	CPR	&	AED 5
HS	FA		 0

1 2 3 4 5

4 27

4 27

1 4 26

8 23

6 25

3 28

Poor Fair Satisfactory Good Excellent
5 26

Yes No
31

Cascade	Healthcare	Services,	LLC.
Clackamas	Fire	District	#1

Community	CPR	and	First	Aid	Programs
Student	Enrollment	and	Course	Evaluation	Summary

					Overall	this	course	met	my	expectations:

					The	program	was	relative	to	my	work	and	extended	my	knowledge:	

					Adequate	supply	of	equipment	that	was	clean	and	in	good	working	order:

					Method	of	presentation	enhanced	my	learning	experience:

Number	of	Classes	Offered	at	Each	Location

Student	would	refer	a	friend/colleague	to	take	the	same	course:

					Classroom	environment	was	conducive	to	learning:

					Instructor(s)	provided	adequate	and	helpful	feedback:	

Apr-17

Clackamas	Fire	Station	Enrollment	by	Location
Apr-17

Clackamas	Fire	Student	Evaluation	Summary	--	April
										1	(Strongly	Disagree)				2	(Disagree)				3	(Neutral)				4	(Agree)				5	(Strongly	Agree)

Class	Type

Class	Type

					Student's	rating	of	the	instructor's	overall	effectiveness:

28



Denise	was	easy	to	work	with	and	made	this	class	enjoyable.

Great	class

Cascade	Healthcare	Services,	LLC.
Clackamas	Fire	District	#1

Community	CPR	and	First	Aid	Programs
Student	Enrollment	and	Course	Evaluation	Summary

Comments	from	Clackamas	Fire	Student	Evaluations	--	April	2017

Test	questions	did	not	line	up	real	well.	More	review	of	material	was	need	to	reinforce	ideas.

Great	class,	nice	room,	great	instruction.

Very	nice	room	and	facility.

Thank	you!

Thanks	for	all	the	great	lifelong	tips	and	experience.	

I	am	very	glad	to	have	taken	this	course	at	the	urging	of	my	daughter	and	I	feel	able	to	act	in	an	
emergency	situation

29



Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Emergency Manager Gregg Ramirez 

Re: Emergency Manager Monthly Report – April 2017 

 Conducted ICS training for North Clackamas School District senior leadership
 Conducted emergency preparedness presentation for Sabin School
 Attended meeting of the Spill Committee working group
 Attended Mass Fatality TTX at the Medical Examiner’s Office

 Attended hazmat exercise planning conference at Kaiser Sunnyside.  We have been very active
with KPS regarding integration of our hazmat team with their training and planning activities

 Graduated 13 students from the most recent CERT class
 Facilitated disaster TTX for the Springs retirement community
 Conducted the new state mandated emergency preparedness training for the adult foster care

providers in Clackamas County
 Conducted CERT Leaders meeting
 Attended Hospital Decon exercise design meeting
 Work on going:

 Station security project
 Working with CERT leaders to create a CERT Handbook
 Continuity of Operations Plan review

Respectfully submitted, 
Emergency Manager Gregg Ramirez 

Emergency Services 

30



 

 
 
 

Emergency Services Division 
To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Facility Maintenance Manager Scott Vallance 

Re: Facility Maintenance Division Monthly Report – April 2017 
 

 

 
April turns out to be another busy month for this Division.  We started to distribute lawn care supplies 
as requested by the stations, began mowing at some of the larger properties and hoping to have some 
good weather soon so some of our projects can continue unabated. 
 
• Brycen Moore began the clean-up at the newly acquired Fuller Road house and will continue this 

project as time is available. 
• Jerome received the plans from Oregon City for the rebuild of the front pad at St. 17, put out an 

RFQ and was able to award the bid to Matton Utilities, a local in-District contractor who 
anticipated being able to begin this work in mid-May, weather permitting.  This project will lower 
the angle of the pad in front of the station to avoid the violent dragging of the tailboard upon 
departure. This will also require us to add ADA approved approaches to the sidewalks as they 
approach the pad.  

• We dealt with numerous aspects of the St. 19 fire: working at the Station with Serv-Pro who is the 
restoration contractor, and moving furniture, supplies and needed items out to St. 18 for the 
temporary housing of the crew. 

• The water storage tank at St. 13 was finally completed after the original liner was replaced. 
Thanks to Jerome Thompson, Mike (Doc) Dinsmore, Volunteer Kevin Gratiot and myself for 
running the water tender shuttles (all 11 of them) required to fill the tank.  We now have 33,000 
gallons of water available on-site for our use as well as available for the ODF. 

• Seismic upgrades were completed at St. 13 and the bay painting had begun at the end of the 
month with weather pushing the balance into May 

• The roof was replaced on St. 12 by Bower Roofing, another local contractor who also replaced 
the roof at St. 13’s bay. 

• Jerome continued to do repairs to the back side of St. 12 as a result of damage incurred by a 
departing apparatus.  This included removing some more siding, and a complete restructuring of 
the eyebrow over the rear man door.  As weather permits, we will be removing the siding to above 
the bay door and replacing it with new.   

• Scott attended numerous meetings concerning the building projects at St. 16, 19 and the 
Fleet/Logistics buildings. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Facility Maintenance Manager Scott Vallance 
 
 

Emergency Services 

31



Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Fleet Director Bill Bischoff 

Re: Fleet Services Division Monthly Report – April 2016 

During the month of April, the following are some of the major items that fleet maintenance personnel 
addressed: 

Engines 
 2-111 E23 PM and several write ups
 3-141 E18 PM and write ups, Radiator repair, Decal replacement
 2-118 E7- Steer tire replacement and other write ups

Trucks/ Heavy Rescue 
 3-370- HM7- Continue set up work to make the HR a Hazmat vehicle
 2-361 HR5- Roll up door problems- Replace roller/spring assy
 2-362 HR/HM- Begin Setting back up as a HR from service as Hazmat
 2-205 T2- Involved in an accident and we are working with insurance on getting body modules

repaired.
Brush Rigs/ Water Tenders/ Boats 

 3-320 BR14- PM and write ups, Decal replacement
 3-341 WT18- Decal replacement and sent to shop for PM and write ups

Staff Vehicles/ Medic 
 Several staff and prevention vehicles for PM and write ups completed.
 3-700 BC4- Evap leak- Check engine light problem

Other Items 
 Fleet took two final inspection trips to Pierce for the Tillers and second set of pumpers.  All five

of these apparatus are looking very good.  Delivery to Hughes Fire should be around May 8th. 
 Sent two technicians to a Detroit Diesel DD13- three day training course. It was a very beneficial

class. 
 Fleet worked on several Canby vehicles and continues to maintain our IGA with them as well as

Gladstone Fire. 
 The two Type III Interface Engines are almost ready to be placed into service.  We will have 6

pumpers and two tillers to work on and set up soon. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Fleet Director Bill Bischoff 

Emergency Services 

32



 

 
 

 

Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Human Resources Manager Trish Noble 

Re: Human Resources Division Monthly Report – April 2017 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Quarterly SOPS Meeting 
 Captains Testing 
 Civil Service Meeting 
 LBG Advisors: Working on final draft of Benefits Policy Statement 

o This document highlights what the goals of the plan are 
o It is used for guidance when making major plan decisions 
o We will change plan objectives annually so LBG will get new quotes and continue to 

search out cost-saving measures for the plan 
 Loomis Plan Management: HST and PHIA contracts are in place 

o We received our first ACH refund 
o HST negotiated its first payment for an oral appliance. Not seamless, needed 

assistance from us. Need to monitor HST negotiations 
 Loomis Funding Reports 

o Working to streamline process. Some reports are missing each week, time 
consuming to track down 

 Member Services: Investigating multiple claims; denials, coordination of benefits, ineligible 
claims, etc. 

 Worker’s Comp claims and Return to Work 
 Policy and Procedure Forum to change process for editing, approving, and dispersing 

documents 
 Women in Leadership Manager’s Academy 
 New Hire Orientations 
 Employee Issue Resolution 
 Employee Performance Appraisals 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Human Resources Manager Trish Noble 

 

Emergency Services 

33



Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Logistics Manager DeAnn Cordes 

Re: Logistics Division Monthly Report – April 2017 

The following summary of work includes those activities completed within Logistics. 

 Logistics filled and delivered 239 orders sent to the Logistics Inbox. This is up 11.68% from April
of last year.

 Filled and delivered 34 controlled medication orders; which is no change from April of last year.
Logistics continues to perform deliveries on Tuesdays and Fridays.

 Updated the emergency communications spreadsheet and CAD. This includes our mobile and
portable radios and alpha pagers.

 Staff attended and represented Logistics at the Safety Committee meeting.
 Met with Rice Fergus Miller this month for an update on Fleet/Logistics building. Civil, mechanical

and electrical engineers were present and gave updates. We finalized interior and exterior finishes.
 Participated in Munis on-site training this month. Training included static environment testing

(SET) for fixed assets, accounts receivable and general billing. The second training for the month
was for core users of requisitions, purchase orders and accounts payable. Logistics and fleet staff
attended this training.

 Met with our vendor regarding annual fire extinguisher service and maintenance. He will be starting
the first week of May and will finish before the end of June. He performs the annual service on all
the fire extinguishers in the buildings as well as on the apparatus.

 Staff performed inventory cycle counts in preparation for our annual inventory on June 30th. In May
we will start preparing our area by clearing out nonstock items and making sure inventory items
are well labeled and organized.

 Logistics staff assisted station 19 crew with getting items needed for their move to station 14 and
with personal protective equipment that was damaged in the fire.

 Staff continued to work with Chuck Karlik as he uses GovDeals to sell surplus items for the
organization.

Respectfully submitted, 
Logistics Manager DeAnn Cordes 

Emergency Services 

34



 

 
 
 

Emergency Services Division 
To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Division Chief Mike Corless 

Re: Training Division Monthly Report – April 2017 
 

 

 
     The following summary of work includes those activities completed within the Training Division. 
 

• Meetings Attended: 
o Training Staff meetings  
o Academy management (wrap up and phase 4 discussion) 
o Training/Communications (AVIDS) 
o Operations meeting  
o Regarding Recruitment/Promotional testing timeline 
o Stations 12 and 13 construction updates 
o Station 16 construction 
o Volunteer Training program 
o CCC facility meeting 

• Continue to refine probationary requirements and reporting 
• Fleet/Logistics design review with Happy Valley for June 1 hearing date 
• Work with RFM to further develop site 
• Webinars  
• Seismic upgrade work complete except for painting (station 13) 
• Final inspection of the TDAs (Tractor Drawn Tiller) 4/17 -2/21 
• Final inspection of the second group of Type I engines 4/24 – 4/27 
• Review Pre-construction Documents on new Medic 
• Project management for ODF grant, tank installed, completing leak test 
• Planning for 2017 Bond Sale 
• Work on Temporary location for Station 16, approval from CCC for the Smuckers location 
• Assist in Station 16 development 
• Personnel issue 

 

Training Chief: Keith Smith 
 

During the April Board Meeting, The Training Division got approval from the Board and Fire Chief to 
purchase our Audio Visual Interactive Display System (AVIDS). Our AVID System will allow us to 
stream live video, provide interactive training, and allow for pertinent streaming District information. 
Each Station will have a display system along with four of the most used classrooms (4, 5, 14, and 
TC.). This will be completed over this and the next fiscal year. We hope to have the project completed 
by December of 17.  
This system will allow our crews to still receive most training at their fire station, allowing the District to 
keep its resources available for emergency response. 
Our Strategic Business Plan states: “Goal 2/Objective 2-1 enhancing skills through targeted Training.” 
This quarter we focused on House Fire Operations and all the skills associated with it.  
 
 
 

Emergency Services 

35



In April, we held 12 drills over two weeks. This was a house fire scenario. We put our crews to the test.  
During the two weeks we saw many WINS, but was also saw plenty of opportunity to improve. In May 
we will deliver our lessons learned via Target Solutions. Your Training Division looks for areas that we 
need to improve as a District. One of those areas was our new Water Supply FRP. We still need some 
work. We will be focusing targeted training on this in our third quarter drills. 

 
Events and Meetings attended 

• Sr. staff meetings (4hrs) 
• Ops Meeting Canceled 
• Training Staff Meetings (6hrs) 
• Schools and Conferences Management (4hrs) 
• AVIDS monthly meeting (2hrs) 
• AVIDS Pre Bid Presentation (2hrs) 
• Multi Company Evaluations (Down and Dirty Drill) (18 hrs) 

South Battalion Training Officer: Sean Brown 
 

Board report for Month of April 
• Safety meeting  
• Weekly Training Staff meetings 
• Participated in Down and Dirty Drills 
• Prepare for 3rd Quarter drill 

 
Other on-going projects 

• Update Probationary AO Task books 
 

North Battalion Training Officer: Mark Webster 

• Completed the AVIDS process with Board of Directors and approvals. 
• Processed the AVIDS RFP and awarded the company Lightwerks to complete the installation. 
o Began the implementation phase of Document Management with the Document Management 

Team: AA Lauren Stevens, AA Amanda Neelands and AT Tracey Grisham. HR Manager Trish 
Noble  and IT Director Oscar Hicks are providing oversite 

• Document Management presentations consisted of Senior Staff and SOPS meeting  
• Began the AVIDS management process  

o Completed my House Fire Training cycle in the first week  
o Completed the AO testing in Medford, OR.   

 
East Battalion Training Officer: Ted Willard 

 
• Volunteer Drill topics for April 

o First Due Engine Operations 
o EMS  
o Joint Suppression and Support Drill 

• April 26 and 27 was a large joint drill between our support and suppression volunteers. We 
simulated a large house fire in the rural setting with an alternative water supply problem. Our 
water tender drivers set up and executed a water tender shuttle and our rehab folks showed up 
and got to practice using their equipment as well. BCs Carmony and Burke were also in 
attendance which added to the realism of the drill. I received many positive comments on the drill.  
We are planning the next joint drill for August 23 and 24. You are all welcome to attend and see 
our fine volunteers in action!  

• I am continuing to work on the volunteer training plan for the rest of 2017.  

 

36



• In addition to our wildland refresher training this year I will be working with Chaplain JR Wheeler 
to create an informational video on our Bendix King (BK) radios. BK radios are the radios that our 
conflagration teams would use at large wildland fires.   

• With April finished we are one month into the SCBA Training Quarter. Everyone is doing a good 
job working on their Target Solutions assignments in preparation for next month’s hands on 
training with the new SCBAs.  

• I also assigned (on Target Solutions) the Fire District’s second quarter training plan. April –June 
will be focused on learning and training with our new MSA G1 SCBAs. The training plan consists 
initially of some training videos, reading, and an SCBA quiz. We will also complete our required fit 
testing in May and end the quarter with a “work rate” in June. The work rate is a series of 
firefighter skills stations where you work in the new air pack to learn how much work you can 
perform with one cylinder’s worth of air.   

 
Academy Coordinator: Steve Sakaguchi 
 
Steve was unavailable to report for this month. Steve has been busy building and managing Firefighter 
Probations as well as preparing for the upcoming Academy starting June 7. Along with the rest of the 
Training Division, Steve was at every Down and Dirty House Fire Operations drill.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Division Chief Mike Corless 

37



Emergency Services Division 

To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Health and Wellness Manager Heather Goodrich 

Re: Wellness Division Monthly Report – April 2017 

The following summary of work includes those activities completed by Clackamas Fire Wellness Staff: 
 Annual Clackamas Volunteer pre-physical testing. (1 person)
 Make-up testing spirometry for Clackamas Volunteer firefighters. (4 people)
 Annual OSHA required hearing conservation training for volunteer firefighters. (2 people)
 Annual Canby Fire volunteer pre-physical testing and lipid testing. (1 person)
 Baseline pre-physicals for Career Firefighter Candidate. (1 person)
 Preventative BP Checks for Staff (2 people)
 Coordinated new hire drug screens for administrative staff new hires. (1 person)
 Immunizations were provided to Clackamas career firefighters. (2 people)
 Coordinated annual NFPA 1582 physicals for Clackamas career firefighters. (2 people)
 Coordinated baseline NFPA 1582 physicals, chest x-rays, treadmills and drug screens for baseline

candidate firefighters (1 person)
 Coordinated annual NFPA 1582 physicals for Clackamas Suppression and Support Volunteers (25

people)
 Coordinated annual NFPA 1582 physicals for Canby Career and Volunteer Firefighters (4 people)
 Coordinated annual NFPA 1582 interim reviews for Clackamas and Canby Volunteers (48 people)
 “Taking Care of Yourself” presentation onsite for 4 career firefighter crews and Fire Prevention. (23

people)
 “Hip Neutral” presentation onsite for Fire Prevention (11 participants).
 Submaximal treadmill tests for Clackamas Career Firefighters. (1 person)
 Injury consultations and on-site treatment by the Athletic Trainer. (19 visits)
 Processed and provided follow-up for on-the-job injury reports and for Safety Committee. Six injury

reports and six exposure reports were submitted with two of the six injury reports turning into a
workers’ compensation claim.

 Coordinated volunteer injuries and return to work program. (1 person returned to full duty)
 Provided requested health information and consultations to 9 firefighters and staff.
 Provided requested information about our program to Seattle Fire, AMR, McMinnville Fire and

Redmond Fire via email and phone.
 Participated in a phone interview for a NIH grant on “Smokeless Tobacco and Firefighters”.

 Created and sent out monthly Wellness Update and Health Insurance Newsletter.
 Distributed EAP Employee Newsletter and EAP Supervisor Newsletter by email.
 Attended the monthly Safety Committee Meeting and Strategic Planning Meeting.

Respectfully submitted, 
Health and Wellness Manager Heather Goodrich 

Emergency Services 

38



Study Looks at Firefighter Calories

Clackamas Fire District #1 
Wellness Update 

 

Q: If you sit in front of a 
window with sunlight coming 
through, will your body      
produce vitamin D or do you 
have to be outdoors with 
direct sunlight? 

  

A:  The process by which 
your skin naturally makes 
vitamin D when exposed to 
sunlight uses short-wave 
ultraviolet-B waves (as       
opposed to long-wave         
ultraviolet-A rays). Typical 
car, home and office        
windows block most UVB 
rays, so the sunlight coming 
through a window will not 
usually make vitamin D.   

Annual Career Fitness 
Testing will take place 
next month at Station 10    
alongside Fit Testing.             
Sub-maximal treadmill and 
flexibility testing will be 
scheduled in June.      
Wellness will perform   
treadmill testing onsite.  

Suppression Volunteer 
Fitness Testing will take 
place in June. Sign-ups 
will be located on the          
volunteer website.  

 

 

Results from the first detailed evaluation of what firefighters across America eat and drink, the “Fuel 2 Fight” 
study, is an eye-opener. 

A study was conducted with 689 career firefighters from 20 departments, which included everything they ate and 
drank at home and at the firehouse — off and on-duty — two times over a six-month period, providing a total of 
1,879 days of food intake.  

The list starts off well with chicken and turkey as the number-one source of calories in firefighters’ diet. 

However, the number two item, alcohol (consumed on the non-duty day), provided almost the same percentage 
of calories in the diet as chicken and turkey. Beer was the main source of the alcohol calories, followed by wine 
and liquor. In fact, some firefighters consumed as many calories in a day from alcohol as they did from all the 
food they ate combined. 

This finding may explain some of the current overweight, obesity problems and weight gain trends in the fire   
service.  This also reinforces the high rates of problem drinking patterns documented in previous studies, both of 
which could be linked to coping with the large volume of stressful events firefighters regularly encounter.  

Salty snacks and chips are in third place. These snacks have a lot of unnecessary sodium, possibly increasing 
risk of hypertension, and otherwise have minimal nutrient value. 

Fourth place is noodles and rice. Most noodles are made from white flour, which appears in multitudes of        
processed foods. This easily consumed, tasty white powder is the result of a complex process of pulverizing the 
wheat grain into a powder and then artificially adding back the nutrients lost in the process. All this happens to 
the grain before it even begins the process of being made into to the actual noodle, which has even more         
additions and preservatives. When foods with white flour are digested, they act like sugar in the body triggering 
inflammation, weight gain and blood sugar changes. 

French fries, hash browns and white potatoes come in at fifth place. White potatoes are eaten throughout the 
day at breakfast, lunch, dinner and as a snack, many coming from fast-food eateries. 

Potatoes have some vitamin C, but are mainly sources of simple carbohydrates digested quickly into sugars after 
consumption. Sugar calories are not something most of us need more of. The fried potatoes from fast food       
eateries frequently are prepared using less desirable fats and are high in calories, adding to the chances of     
potential weight gain.  

Not surprisingly, sweet pastries and sugar-sweetened beverages also are among the top calorie providers.      
Although science and the current media provide messages about the health implications of added sugars in the 
diet, our data show sweets and sodas are a huge part of firefighters’ diets.  

These foods have minimal nutritional content and negatively impact hormones which control hunger and body 
fat. The foods and beverages on this list providing calories and little nutrient value are likely part of the reason 
firefighters are struggling with excess weight and related health problems. 

These 20 beverages and foods provide almost 50 percent of all the calories in firefighters’ diets and represent 
two-thirds of all the individual foods consumed. (Article continued on Page 3. . . ) 

39



Migraines. Eczema. Sinus issues. Diarrhea. Constipation. Muscle pain. What do these symptoms have 
in common? They are all forms of inflammation and most are reactions to foods or chemicals found in 
foods or the environment. But is it an allergy, a sensitivity or an intolerance? These words are often 
used interchangeably, but are not the same thing. Some may be potentially life-threatening, while       
others are just a chronic nuisance. How do you know which one it is and what you can do about it? 

Food Allergy 

A food allergy is an immune-system reaction to a specific protein found in a food. The immune system 
sees this protein as a foreign invader and mounts a defense by producing antibodies to fight it.        
Symptoms occur quickly after consuming the food and can be life-threatening, as in an anaphylactic 
reaction to peanuts, and even a small amount of food can trigger a reaction. Other symptoms include 
headache, stomach pain, swelling, itching and sneezing. Some allergies can be treated with an over-
the-counter antihistamine, while others require a self-injected shot of epinephrine. The eight most      
common food allergens include peanuts, tree nuts, wheat, eggs, shell fish, fish, dairy and soy. Strict 
avoidance of the known allergen is recommended. 

Food Sensitivity 

Although food sensitivities can have the same symptoms as food allergies—digestive reactions, sinus 
troubles, muscle pain, headaches, rashes—they also include brain fog, sleep disturbances and urinary 
issues, and can also play a role in fertility. Food sensitivity reactions are not life-threatening, but do    
contribute to the chronic complaints of many people. Both irritable bowel syndrome (IBS) and migraines 
are linked to food sensitivities and show tremendous resolution when the dietary culprits are identified 
and the proper nutrition program is followed, which allows the body’s inflammation to subside and 
symptoms to abate. The onset of symptoms is often delayed, appearing as little as a few hours to as 
much as 72 hours after consumption of a trigger food. Unlike a food allergy, food sensitivities are not an 
immune reaction. The cell responds to the trigger food by producing mediators, like histamine, which 
cause the symptoms. Some food sensitivities are dose-related, meaning you might be able to have a 
small amount of the food before a reaction is triggered. 

Food Intolerance 

More common than food allergies are food intolerances, the most well-known of which is lactose         
intolerance. Marked by digestive symptoms, such as gas, bloating and diarrhea, lactose intolerance is 
caused by the lack of the enzyme lactase, which is necessary for the body to digest lactose, the sugar 
found in dairy products. Some individuals with lactose intolerance may be able to tolerate a small 
amount of dairy products or only certain forms of dairy without experiencing any symptoms. Lactose-
free dairy products are available, and lactase supplements, if taken before eating a dairy product, can 
help reduce or eliminate any symptoms. 

If you suffer from digestive woes, sinus congestion, skin rashes, migraines, brain fog or muscle and 
joint pain, it could be caused by one or more foods that you are eating. Even perfectly healthy foods 
can potentially be the culprit for the inflammation that’s at the root of your symptoms. A physician or 
registered dietitian nutritionist who specializes in food allergies and sensitivities can help you figure out 
your trigger foods and craft the appropriate food plan to help heal your body. 

Source: www.acefitness.org 

 

If you have high blood       
pressure (readings             
persistently over 140/90 
mmHg), the most important 
thing you can do is eliminate 
the factors in your lifestyle 
that are driving your BP 
northward. Eliminate those 
and you might avoid the 
need for medications, or at 
least reduce the amounts 
required to control your      
readings. Here’s how lifestyle 
changes can impact your 
blood pressure:  

 Losing weight: 5-20 
mmHg decrease per 
20lbs weight lost 

 Eating a healthy diet:      
8-14 mmHg decrease 

 Reducing sodium: 2-8 
mmHG decrease 

 Regular physical activity: 
4-9 mmHg decrease 

 Reducing alcohol         
consumption: 2-4 mmHg 
decrease 

Put all these together and 
you can realize anywhere 
from a 20 to 50 mmHg drop 
on your own. That is the 
same kind of result you’d get 
from being on a bunch of           
medications.  

Eating right should be a    
cornerstone of your efforts, 
since diet affects so many 
other factors that impact your 
blood pressure readings. And 
because sodium is so hard to 
avoid, you’ll need to be     
especially diligent in this   
area.  

Even if your blood pressure 
readings are only “borderline” 
or “mildly abnormal” right 
now, it’s still very important to 
make these lifestyle        
changes. Taking steps to 
lower your readings now can 
keep your blood pressure 
problem from progressing 
into something more           
dangerous.  

Source: www.webmd.com 40



FDA: Improper Use of Neti Pots Could 
Lead to Brain-Eating Amoebas Although some of these 

foods do not individually 
contribute a high percentage 
of calories, collectively they 
make a large impact on 
health. Many of the foods on 
this list are heavily           
processed and have a high-
refined grain content and 
make up one-quarter of all 
calories consumed. 

Refined grains are            
carbohydrates that when           
digested, are available to the 
body as more sugars.        
Processed foods and refined 
grains have low or no        
vitamins and minerals and 
don’t adequately fuel a       
firefighters’ strenuous,      
demanding lifestyle. 

If this type of empty calorie 
eating is sustained over a 
career, it can lead to weight 
gain and poor health,        
making firefighting even 
more challenging. As well, 
overweight and obesity are 
associated with                 
cardiovascular disease, 
which is the major cause of 
fire service line-of-duty 
deaths. 

So if you are wondering why 
your belt is getting tighter 
and you don’t feel energized 
to get up and do your job 
with your crew — maybe it’s 
time to think about how you 
eat and start to make some 
changes. 

Choose food and beverages 
with actual nutrients, not just 
extra calories. You can 
make some simple changes 
to help fuel your body to do 
the hard work of being a first 
responder. Reducing intake 
of high-calorie foods will help 
prevent additional weight 
gain. 

You can’t outrun a bad diet, 
no matter how hard you 
exercise. Being healthy 
starts with a good diet and is 
complimented by exercise 
and adequate sleep. 

Source: www.firerescue1.com 

Neti Pots have become a regular use in many homes. They are used to flush 
out clogged nasal passages and help people breathe easier, but the FDA has 
issued a warning regarding the use of the product.  

Neti Pots use a saline solution to treat congested sinuses, colds and           
allergies, but according to the FDA, improper use can increase your risk of an infection.  

The FDA advises Neti Pot users to rinse only with distilled, sterile or previously boiled water. Tap water is not 
safe for a nasal rinse because it’s not adequately filtered or treated. Some tap water contains low levels of     
organisms—such as bacteria or protozoa, including amoebas—that may be safe to swallow because stomach 
acid kills them. But in your nose, these organisms can stay alive in nasal passages and cause potentially           
serious infections. They can even be fatal in some rare cases, according to the CDC.  

Safely Using Nasal Irrigation Systems:  

 Wash and dry your hands.  

 Check that the device is clean and completely dry.  

 Prepare the saline rinse, either with the prepared mixture supplied with the device, or one you make        
yourself.  

 Leaning over a sink, tilt your head sideways with your forehead and chin roughly level to avoid liquid         
flowing into your mouth.  

 Breathing through your open mouth, insert the spout of saline-filled container into your upper nostril so that 
the liquid drains through the lower nostril.  

 Clear your nostrils. Then repeat the procedure, tilting your head sideways, on the other side.  

 Wash the device, and dry the inside with a paper towel or let it air dry between uses.  

Sinus rinsing can remove dust, pollen and other debris, as well as help to loosen thick mucus. It can also help 
relieve nasal symptoms of sinus infections, allergies, colds and flu. Plain water can irritate your nose. The saline 
allows the water to pass through delicate nasal membranes with little or no burning or irritation.  

If your immune system isn’t working properly, consult your health care provider before using any nasal  irrigation 
system.  

Source: www.fda.gov  

SPIDERMAN WITH A TWIST 
This movement not only works the core, but provides a stretch at the same time.   

How To Do It 
 Start in a push-up position. Bring the right foot to the       

outside of the right hand. Keep the right foot completely flat, 
and the left leg completely extended.  

 Slowly drive the hips from side to side five to ten times 
each. Rest the left knee on the floor and reach the left arm 
up and back. Hold for a two-count and bring back to the 
floor.  

 Reach the right arm up and back and hold for a two-count. 
Next, walk both hands forward (keeping the right foot in 
place) until you are back to a push-up position. Repeat on 
the left side and complete five reps (or cover 10-15 yards).  

 

 

 
41



These salmon skewers are packed with omega-3 fatty acids, which are good for your 

heart.  

INGREDIENTS   
 4 (4 ounce) salmon filets, cut into chunks 
 A pinch of salt and pepper 
 1 bunch of green onions, sliced into 1-to 2-inch     

pieces 
 1/2 cup sweet chili sauce, plus extra for topping 
 1 TB coconut oil 
 2 TB fresh chopped cilantro 
 1 TB toasted sesame oil 
 1 TB toasted sesame seeds 
 2 limes, sliced 

 
 
DIRECTIONS 

1. Place the salmon in a bowl and season with salt and pepper. Cover the salmon with 
the sweet chili sauce, tossing well to coat. Skewer the 4-5 chunks of salmon with 3 to 
4 pieces of green onion. You can toss with a little more chili sauce if desired.  

2. Heat a large skillet or grill pan over medium-high heat and add the coconut oil. Place 
the skewers in the skillet and cook until opaque and golden on all sides, about 1 to 2 
minutes per side. Remove the salmon and place it on a plate. Drizzle it with the      
toasted sesame oil and cover with the cilantro and sesame seeds. Finish with a spritz 
of lime. Serve with lime wedges and extra chili sauce.  

 
 
  

     
 
 
 
 

16170 SE 130 Ave 

Clackamas, OR 97015 

Fax: 503-742-2886 

 
Health & Wellness Manager 
Heather Goodrich 
Office: 503-742-2686 
Cell: 971-806-1835 
heather.goodrich@clackamasfire.com 

 

Wellness Specialist 
Alicia McVicker 
Office: 503-742-2690 
Cell: 971-275-3981 
alicia.mcvicker@clackamasfire.com 

 

Medical Assistant 
Koryn Galego 
Office: 503-742-2689 
Cell: 971-284-3343 
koryn.galego@clackamasfire.com 
 

Athletic Trainer 
Jennifer Adams 
Cell: 503-706-4041 
jennifer.adams@clackamasfire.com 

Clackamas Fire Wellness Update Issue 108  August 2009 

Want to lift your spirits? Lift the corners of your mouth. Even faking a smile can change your brain’s          
chemistry and make you feel happier.  

Nutrition Facts:    
Servings: 4 
Serving Size: 1 skewer  
Calories: 232 
Total Fat : 9g  
Carbohydrate: 16g 
Protein: 25g 
     

Source: www.providence.org 

 
Clackamas Fire Wellness Update Issue 200  April 2017 

42



Financial Services Summary 
To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Finance Director Christina Day 

Re: Financial Services Division Monthly Report – April 2017 

Due to the closing of the books, which takes place from May 7-11, 2017, the Financial Report will be 
available and distributed at the board meeting on May 15, 2017. 

    Financial Report 

R-1d

1



Administrative Services Division 
To: Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From:  Division Chief Doug Whiteley 

Re: Fire Prevention Division Monthly Report – April 2017 

Engineering  Fire Prevention staff reviewed 113 buildings and land use projects in the month of 
April 2017. In addition, 17 tenant remodel inspections were conducted, as well as three new 
construction inspections. 

Enforcement  A total of 758 inspections were carried out in the month of April 2017. These 
include fire and life safety inspections, special inspections completed by the Fire Prevention staff, 
and the business inspections completed by the fire companies. 

Public Education 

April 1 Station 15 Bike Safety/Bistro Grand Opening Event at OC Train Station 
April 3 FMO Hands Only CPR Education – Clackamas High School Day 1 
April 4 FMO Hands Only CPR Education – Clackamas High School Day 2 
April 5 Station 10 Safety Talk & Engine Tour – Carus Preschool 
April 6 Station 3 Fire Station Tour 
April 8 Station 4/FMO Easter Egg Hunt & Safety Booth – Blount International 
April 8 S2/Vol/Rehab 2 Dogwood Dash 

April 12 FMO Fire Skills Class Presentation – Sabin/Schellberg Cener 
April 15 Station 5 Easter Egg Hunt - The Hatter's Eggstravaganza 
April 15 Station 15 Easter Egg Hunt - Oregon City Community 
April 18 FMO Instruct at TVF&R Apartment Manager Training 
April 20 Station 14/FMO Career Fair - Fire Safety/Fire Fighting - Hood View Jr. Academy 
April 20 Station 6 Fire Station Tour - Girl Scout Troup 
April 20 Station 2 Fire Station Tour - Ready, Set, Go - Wichita 
April 20 FMO Presentation at The Boys and Girls Club 
April 21 Station 4 Fire Station Tour - PDX Mom's Group - SE Playdates 
April 21 Station 6 Safety Talk & Engine Tour – Academy For Kids Preschool 
April 21 FMO Hands Only CPR Education - Rock Creek Middle School 
April 24 Various Dodgeball Tournament - Milwaukie Charities 
April 24 Station 4 Fire Station Tour - Ready, Set, Go - Bilquist 
April 26 FMO Hands Only CPR Education – Sabin/Schellenberg Center 
April 27 Station 6 Bring Your Child to Work Day - Willamette National Cemetery 
April 27 FMO Team Teaching with ODF - Carus School 
April 28 Station 7/FMO Supervise Side-by-Side Burn Prop – OBOA meeting 

   Administrative Services 
R-1e

1



Note: The following are areas of interest on specific topics or items have received additional 
staff time beyond what is noted above. 

• On Wednesday, April 12, staff visited the Sabin/Schellenberg Center to present about
careers in fire service to the students. The presentation covered all areas of fire services
to include fire suppression, fire prevention, and all non-uniformed positions. This is a
presentation that staff provides to students at least once a year at the center.

• During the month of April, staff received three referrals for youth fire setters that caused
fires within the community. These intervention actions include a screening interview and
assessment, immediate and direct education as necessary, and a referral to the
Clackamas County Juvenile Department.

• As discussed verbally last month, Oregon City School District has purchased $5,000
worth of CPR manikins for use within their school district. The majority of our Hands
Only CPR program is focused around teaching students how to do Hands Only CPR and
then requiring them to teach family and friends as homework.

• Staff attended two meetings with the State Fire Marshal’s Office to review and discuss
new draft language in Oregon Administrative Rules for fire agencies to establish exempt
status from the State Fire Marshal’s Office. If approved, the new rules would go into
effect around July 1, 2017.

• Staff will be submitting this year for the Fire Prevention FEMA Grant Program. Last year
we were awarded this grant to support our Apartment Inspection Program. This year’s
submittal will focus around installing electronic reader boards in front of several stations
to allow for mass messaging of public education information.

• Staff helped the City of Happy Valley review grant applications for a Tourism Grant to be
awarded through Clackamas County. The grant is intended to support and further
expand tourism in the area. This grant was split among several applicants.

2



2017 Inspections
January - April
Assigned To Actions Scheduled # Done % Done
Division, Fire Marshal Office           1 YEAR PREVENTION OFFICE                1414 439 31.05%

2 YEAR PREVENTION OFFICE                720 193 26.81%

HAZ MAT INSPECTION                      35 1 2.86%

ANNUAL SELF INSPECTION                  106 77 72.64%

APARTMENT PROGRAM 1 YEAR                366 119 32.51%

4 YEAR PREVENTION OFFICE                148 15 10.14%

Division, Fire Marshal Office            Total 2789 844 30.26%

Station, Station 1                      COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               1 1 100.00%

COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               21 19 90.48%

COMPANY 4 YEAR INSPECTION               25 19 76.00%

Lock Box                                19 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 12 1 8.33%

Station, Station 1                       Total 78 40 51.28%

Station, Station 10                     COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               12 4 33.33%

Lock Box                                7 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 6 2 33.33%

Station, Station 10                      Total 25 6 24.00%

Station, Station 11                     COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               4 2 50.00%

Lock Box                                5 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 3 0 0.00%

Station, Station 11                      Total 12 2 16.67%

Station, Station 14                     COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               6 4 66.67%

Lock Box                                1 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 20 3 15.00%

Station, Station 14                      Total 27 7 25.93%

Station, Station 15                     COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               1 0 0.00%

COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               38 2 5.26%

Lock Box                                8 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 10 0 0.00%

Station, Station 15                      Total 57 2 3.51%

Station, Station 16                     COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               72 41 56.94%

Lock Box                                4 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 12 2 16.67%

Station, Station 16                      Total 88 43 48.86%

Station, Station 17                     COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               63 38 60.32%

Lock Box                                3 1 33.33%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 6 2 33.33%

Station, Station 17                      Total 72 41 56.94%

Station, Station 19                     COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               22 0 0.00%

Station, Station 19                      Total 22 0 0.00%

Station, Station 2                      COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               20 17 85.00%

COMPANY 4 YEAR INSPECTION               53 33 62.26%

Lock Box                                12 4 33.33%

3



TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 12 0 0.00%

Station, Station 2                       Total 97 54 55.67%

Station, Station 3                      COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               1 1 100.00%

COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               41 30 73.17%

COMPANY 4 YEAR INSPECTION               26 11 42.31%

Lock Box                                8 2 25.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 18 0 0.00%

Station, Station 3                       Total 94 44 46.81%

Station, Station 4                      COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               18 7 38.89%

COMPANY 4 YEAR INSPECTION               26 6 23.08%

Lock Box                                5 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 14 2 14.29%

Station, Station 4                       Total 63 15 23.81%

Station, Station 5                      COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               1 1 100.00%

COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               31 31 100.00%

COMPANY 4 YEAR INSPECTION               1 1 100.00%

Lock Box                                2 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 2 0 0.00%

Station, Station 5                       Total 37 33 89.19%

Station, Station 6                      COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               30 9 30.00%

Lock Box                                5 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 4 0 0.00%

Station, Station 6                       Total 39 9 23.08%

Station, Station 7                      COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               3 0 0.00%

COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               22 7 31.82%

Lock Box                                5 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 2 0 0.00%

Station, Station 7                       Total 32 7 21.88%

Station, Station 8                      COMPANY 1 YEAR INSPECTION               1 1 100.00%

COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               79 28 35.44%

COMPANY 4 YEAR INSPECTION               24 12 50.00%

Lock Box                                18 0 0.00%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 16 0 0.00%

Station, Station 8                       Total 138 41 29.71%

Station, Station 9                      COMPANY 2 YEAR INSPECTION               24 23 95.83%

COMPANY 4 YEAR INSPECTION               1 1 100.00%

Lock Box                                8 5 62.50%

TARGET HAZARD WALK THRU                 7 7 100.00%

Station, Station 9                       Total 40 36 90.00%

Grand Total 3710 1224 32.99%

4



Assigned To Actions # Done
Division, Fire Marshal Office            ENFORCEMENT ASSIST                       44

FIREWORKS                                6

FIRST REINSPECT                          40

NEW BUSINESS INSPECT                     1

NEW CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION              3

OPEN BURNING                             7

PLAN REVIEW                              113

SECOND REINSPECT                         3

SPECIAL INSPECTION                       14

TENANT IMPROVEMENT                       17

Division, Fire Marshal Office            Total 248

Grand Total 248

Special Inspections                                                                                          

April 2017

5



2015 95 Incidents
2016 91 Incidents
2017 109 Incidents

False Fire and Medical Alarm Responses

Monthly Average

Information within this category will be used for the purpose of cost recovery pursuant to Ordinance 09-01

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2015 87 72 95 100 117 110 82 83 89 106 105 89

2016 78 78 86 87 73 104 65 107 107 126 93 88

2017 132 92 86 126

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

In 2006 Fire District personnel were responding to an average of 140 false fire alarm incidents per month. Due to these
responses, in February of 2007 The Fire District adapted fee Ordinance 07‐01. This cost recovery fee program was
initiated in August 2007. A report is ran each month which lists all false alarm calls. In April 2009, Clackamas Fire
District # 1 adopted Ordinance 09‐01. Pursuant to Ordinance 09‐01; Cost recovery fees may be imposed for responses
to repetitive false (nuisance) responses to fire and medical alarms. No cost recovery fee shall be imposed for the initial
four (4) fire alarm or medical responses to any residential or commercial occupancy during a calendar year. No cost
recovery fee shall be charged if the fire alarm is a result of a fire. No cost recovery fee shall be charged if the medical
alarm results in medical treatment by EMS personnel. Canceled en‐route incidents are considered a billable event since
the apparatus was deployed and thus an incident report must be generated. Fees will be based upon the reasonable
estimate of the actual average cost of a fire alarm response.

6



Year Fire Cause of Ignition Incidents %
2015 Cause under investigation 0 1.98%

Cause undetermined after investigation 11 12.79%
Cause, other 1 1.16%
Failure of equipment or heat source 15 17.44%
Intentional 5 5.81%
Unintentional 54 62.80%

2015 Total 86 100.00%
2016 Act of Nature 2 2.56%

Cause under investigation 1 1.28%
Cause undetermined after investigation 11 14.10%
Cause, other 2 2.56%
Failure of equipment or heat source 9 11.54%
Intentional 4 5.13%
Unintentional 49 62.80%

2016 Total 78 100.00%

Data Excludes: Cooking and Chimney Fires

Clackamas Fire District #1
2017 Structure Fire Cause of Ignition 

Data on 111-Building Fire's only within Clackamas Fire Dist. FMZ's

Act of Nature
1
3%

Cause under 
investigation

1
3%

Cause 
undetermined 

after investigation
2
7%

Cause, other
0
0%

Failure of 
equipment or heat 

source
8

28%

Intentional
2
7%

Unintentional
13
52%

7



Emergency Services 

Emergency Services Division 
To:      Chief Fred Charlton and the Board of Directors 

From: Volunteer Services Chief Steve Deters 

Re:      Volunteer Services Division Monthly Report – April 2017 

The following report is a breakdown of Volunteer activity in training and scheduled public events. 

Fire Training 
Drills in the month of April focused on the following: 

4/4/2017 WT – Support Career Drill 
4/5/2017 WT – Support Career Drill 
4/5/2017 First Due Engine Evolutions 
4/6/2017 WT – Support Career Drill 
4/13/2017 First Due Engine Evolutions 
4/26/2017 Joint Suppression, Rehab and WT Drill 
4/27/2017 Joint Suppression, Rehab and WT Drill 

EMS Training 
April EMS Training focused on the following: 

4/19/2017 EMS – Target Solutions Training 
4/20/2017 EMS – Target Solutions Training 

In April the Volunteer group participated in the following events/meetings 

4/3/2017 Filling new above the ground tank – Station 13 
4/3/2017 Full Volunteer Association meeting 
4/8/2017 Milwaukie Dogwood 5K and 10K Fun Run 

Recruitment 
Recruit Academy 17-01 
4/8/2017 Recruitment written test 
4/22/2017 Recruitment oral interviews 

Explorers 
Drill focused on fire ground operations 

Public-Relations 
None reported. 

R-1f

1



Station Coverage 
The following is a breakdown of nights per station that had a Duty Shift. 
 
Station 12 – 22/30  
Station 13 – 16/30   
Station 18 – 24/30   

 
Rehab/Water Tender Group – 29/30 

 
 

2



CORRESPONDENCE 
 

C-1 Thank you Re: Engine 4: Capt. Don Davis, AO Alex Carey, FF Randy Powers, and FF 
Colin Campbell; Heavy Rescue 5: Lt. Tyson Lowther, AO Ryan McDonald, and FFs 
James Yochum and Bob Lowther; and Battalion Chief Brian Burke for their support with 
a horse stuck in a muddy field. 

 
C-2 Thank you Re: Truck 2: Capt. Jason Ellison, AO Ted Pentecost, FF Kyle Myers, and FF 

Alan Kaiser for their professionalism and kindness on a call, and for their quick response 
time. 

 
C-3 Thank you Re: Engine 15: Capt. Andy Welk, AO Jamen Lahodny, and FF Everett Easton 

for their support at an Easter Egg Hunt in Oregon City.  
 
C-4 Thank you Re: Engine 6: Lt. Jeff Smith, AO Steve Sherman, and FF Matt Graham for 

their professionalism, EMT training, and care of a patient. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 



C-1



E4: Capt. Don Davis, AO Alex Carey, FF Randy Powers, and FF Colin Campbell; HR5: Lt. Tyson 
Lowther, AO Ryan McDonald, and FFs James Yochum and Bob Lowther; and Battalion Chief Brian 
Burke



1

Subject: Compliment or Concern Submission

---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From:  Clackamas Fire resident
Date: Thu, Apr 13, 2017 at 18:44 
Subject: Compliment or Concern Submission 
To:  

Name:

Clackamas Fire resident

Email:

Phone:

Address:

Milwaukie, Oregon 97222 
United States 
Map It

Date of Incident:

04/13/2017

Location of Incident:

My home at the above address

Feedback Is About:

Medical Services

Do wish you to share a compliment or concern?

Compliment

We're happy to receive your compliment! Tell us about it:

My father-in-law was having some health issues today and his doctor asked him to to go the hospital via ambulance. The 
firetruck arrived just moments after we called 911. The team was incredibly professional and kind, and I was so thankful for their 
help. My father-in-law is easily confused, and they patiently asked questions to assess what was going on. They were very 
thorough and helped get him ready for ambulance transport. Please pass on my appreciation to them! 

The 911 operator was also incredibly kind and was very calming. 

Thank you for making me feel safe!

T2: Capt. Jason Ellison, AO Ted Pentecost, FF Kyle Myers, and FF Alan Kaiser

C-2



1

Subject: FW: Thank You!!!

From: Event Coordinator  
Sent: Wednesday, April 19, 2017 3:33 PM 
To: Store 1525 c90 ‐ Store Manager 

Subject: [Spam score:9%] Thank You!!! 

THANK YOU greatly from the bottom of our hearts! Boy Scout Troop 220 of Oregon City 
could not pull this event off without the fantastic support of organizations like yours! 

Last Saturday's event was a complete success from start to finish and even had sunny & 
warm weather! 

We truly appreciate the continued support from each and every one of you. 

C-3



E15: Capt. Andy Welk, AO Jamen Lahodny, and FF Everett Easton



Patient's aunt

Patient's aunt

*Patient's aunt and identifying patient information have been redacted to protect HIPAA.

C-4

E6: Lt. Jeff Smith, AO Steve Sherman, and FF Matt Graham



INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

I-1 Volunteer Firefighter Rustam Abbasov Receives Recognition – Clackamas County 
Sheriff’s Office Facebook 

 
I-2 Fire hits close to home for Damascus firefighters – Clackamas Review/Oregon City 

News 
 
I-3 Electrical Short Ignites Attic Fire at Clackamas Fire Station – Oregon Live/Oregonian 
 
I-4 Deputies: Man Pours Gas on 69-year-old Stranger at Denny’s, Lights Him on Fire – 

KATU News 
 
I-5 Denny’s Arson Attack Suspect Arrested – Oregon Live/Oregonian 
 
I-6 Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation donations to help children – Clackamas 

Review/Oregon City News 
 
I-7 Community Spotlight: Beavercreek Fire Department – Beavercreek Bulletin, May edition 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



I-1



Volunteer Firefighter Rustam Abbasov (pictured above, right).



Clackamas Review/Oregon City News 

Fire hits close to home for Damascus 
firefighters 
Created on Sunday, 16 April 2017 | Written by Jim Redden 

Crews from Clackamas Fire District 1 have only been manning the station where the fire broke out 
full time since Feb. 27. 

CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT #1 – Although the station in Damascus is temporarily closed, the damage could have been much worse. 

Firefighters were on the spot when a blossoming cherry tree sparked a fire in Damascus on 
Sunday morning. 

The fire started at Clackamas Fire District #1 Damascus Station 19. They extinguished the fire 
because it caused more than minimal damage in the attic space. 

But the damage could have been far worse if the fire started before Feb. 27. Firefighters have only 
been staffing the station at 20100 SE Hwy 212 full-time since then. 

According to Clackamas Fire District #1, shortly after 7:30 am on April 16, firefighters at the station 
noticed a strong smell of smoke. While investigating the cause, smoke was found to be venting from 
the attic space above the apparatus garage. 

On-duty firefighters quickly removed fire apparatus from the building and activated a first alarm fire 
response. 

During the fire investigation, PGE noted that a blossoming cherry tree down the road had pushed a 
live power line and a neutral line together. This electrical short at the power pole back fed the fire 
station causing the fire. 

Clackamas Fire wants to ensure the community that service delivery will not be affected. 
Contingency plans are already in place to begin to repair the fire station and return it to operational 
status. Station 19 is closed for fire district and community use at this time. It is unknown how long 
the closure will be in place. 

I-2

http://portlandtribune.com/component/contact/contact/


OregonLive/Oregonian 

Electrical Short Ignites Attic Fire at Clackamas Fire Station 
By Tony Hernandez, on April 16, 2017 at 4:08 PM 

Firefighters 
extinguished a fire 
inside their own 
station Sunday 
morning, Clackamas 
Fire District No. 1 
officials said.

On-duty crews at 
Station 19 smelled 
smoke around 7:30 
a.m. at 20100 S.E. 
Oregon 212 in 
Damascus, according 
to a news release. 
Crews quickly found 
smoke venting from 
areas above the 
station's garage. 

They quickly moved their fire trucks and got to work, extinguishing the fire inside the 
attic. Photos submitted by the fire department show damage to the garage ceiling and 
roof. 

Investigators determined the fire sparked after a nearby blossoming cherry tree 
pushed a live electrical line with a neutral line, which caused an electrical short, 
officials said. 

The fire could have been worse had there been no crews staffed at the fire station. 
Fire District leaders began staffing the building at all hours in late February, officials 
said. 

The station will be closed to the public during repairs, but fire response and service 
will not be impacted, officials said in the news release.  

I-3



KATU News 

Deputies: Man Pours Gas on 69-year-old Stranger at Denny's, Lights Him on Fire 
By KATU Staff, on April 19, 2017  

HAPPY VALLEY, Ore. 
— The Clackamas 
County Sheriff's Office 
says a man walked into 
a Denny's restaurant 
Wednesday night, threw 
what was likely gasoline 
on a customer and then 
lit him on fire. 

The incident happened 
around 9 p.m. at the 
Denny’s at 12101 S.E. 
82nd Avenue, across 
from the Clackamas 
Town Center. 

Deputies said they reviewed restaurant surveillance video and saw the suspect sit down in a 
booth next to the victim. They said they then saw the suspect dump a liquid on the victim and 
toss a burning object onto him. There was then a large flash, according to the report, before the 
suspect ran out of the restaurant. 

Emergency crews took the 69-year-old victim to Legacy Emanuel Medical Center for burn 
treatment. The man was in critical condition at last update Thursday morning. 

Arriving firefighters reported smelling gasoline inside the restaurant and on the victim, and 
officials believe the liquid was gasoline. 

"This just seems like a, a random act of violence," says Sgt. Jason Ritter with the Clackamas 
County Sheriff's office. 

“It makes you wonder what’s going through the suspect’s head. What makes him do that to a 
stranger?” customer, Jesse Loyer says. 

“I couldn’t believe it… I was like, alright, I come here for breakfast everyone once in a while. I 
guess it was random so that’s kind of crazy,” says customer, Shawn Rutledge. 

Deputies say the suspect then took off running southbound on SE 82nd. The damage inside 
isn't much, just a small patch on the wall of the booth scorched. 

“Saw the burn mark on the wall," Loyer says. 

Employees told KATU the victim is a regular at night. Robert Roy's a regular, too, but usually for 
breakfast. 

"Makes me want to watch everywhere I go," Roy says. "Maybe we’ll get a concealed weapons 
permit, maybe.” 

I-4



The Oregonian/OREGONLIVE 

Denny's Arson Attack Suspect Arrested 
By Jim Ryan on April 20, 2017 at 8:18pm 

Authorities have arrested a man suspected in an arson attack at a Denny's restaurant 
Wednesday night near Clackamas Town Center. 

A Clackamas County Sheriff's Office spokesman said authorities arrested 24-year-old 
Deshaun James Swanger on Thursday. Detectives have accused him of attempted murder, 
and booked into the Clackamas County jail without bail. 

The agency previously released surveillance photos and footage of a man who the 
spokesman said dumped gasoline on another man and lit him on fire. 

The 69-year-old victim is in critical condition at Legacy Emanuel Medical Center, as of a 
Thursday morning sheriff's office update. A hospital spokeswoman has not responded to a 
request for a condition update. 

Deputies haven't publicly identified the victim, but KGW-TV reports he's Scott Ranstrom -- 
the subject of an online crowdfunding effort looking to raise $100,000 for medical expenses. 

The sheriff's office said the Denny's arson suspect, since identified as Swanger, sat at a 
booth adjacent to the victim, poured the liquid on him and threw a lighted item at him, 
creating a big flash. Swanger, who lives in Milwaulkie, ran out of the restaurant, deputies 
said. 

Sgt. Brian Jensen, the spokesman, previously said the attack appears to be random and is 
not being investigated as a hate crime. 

He said tips from law enforcement agencies and citizens led investigators to Swanger's 
transitional house near Clackamas Town Center and that they arrested him without incident. 

Investigators are still looking into whether Swanger was involved in a movie theater arson 
attempt Sunday night, Jensen said. 

Ron Steinhauser, a witness to the arson attempt, said "The Fate of the Furious" was nearing 
its end at Clackamas Town Center when he saw something spark in his row about 10 feet to 
his right. 

Steinhauser then saw a single match light an entire book of matches, illuminating what 
appeared to be a clear plastic water bottle that a person used to dump liquid on another man, 
he said. 

"I didn't smell the gasoline until the (victim) ran by me," Steinhauser told The 
Oregonian/OregonLive earlier Thursday. "With the amount of gas on the floor he must have 
squeezed the bottle hard." 

I-5

http://www.oregonlive.com/clackamascounty/index.ssf/2017/04/dennys_customer_burned_by_susp.html
http://www.kgw.com/news/crime/deputies-searching-for-man-who-set-dennys-customer-on-fire/432668429
https://www.gofundme.com/yhrhaf-scotts-recovery-fund


Firefighters on Wednesday night told Clackamas County detectives they also smelled 
gasoline after responding to the Denny's at 12101 S.E. 82nd Ave. Steinhauser thinks the 
same person could be involved in both incidents. 

Swanger's criminal history includes first- and second-degree burglary, delivery of marijuana 
for consideration and unauthorized use of a vehicle convictions, records show.  

 

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Denny's/@45.435591,-122.5817243,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x54957577a918878b:0x48144a193e285e2d!8m2!3d45.4355873!4d-122.5795356


Clackamas Review/Oregon City News 

Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation 
donations to help children 
Created on Wednesday, 26 April 2017   

Donations go to nonprofit abuse intervention Children's Center in Oregon City and Rowe Middle 

School's Food for Success program in Milwaukie  

On Friday, April 14, the Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation donated to the nonprofit 
abuse intervention Children's Center in Oregon City and Rowe Middle School's Food for 
Success program in Milwaukie.  

PHOTO COURTESY: CLACKAMAS FIRE - Clackamas Fire Chief Fred Charlton (left) and 
Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation President Don Trotter (right) present a check for 
$5,000 to Tom Soma, executive director of the Children’s Center, which supports and medically 
assesses children in Clackamas County who are suspected victims of abuse or neglect.  

The Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation "has been a critical partner in our intervention 
and prevention efforts for more than 12 years," said Tom Soma, Children's Center executive 
director. "The Foundation's gifts — which now surpass $50,000 — have helped to ensure the 
prospect of healing for hundreds of children whose lives depend on it. On behalf of all these 
children, we are deeply grateful."  

Children are referred to the Children's Center by law enforcement agencies, child protective 
workers, parents, teachers, health care providers and others concerned for their welfare.  

Every day, the Children's Center faces a reality that most people prefer to avoid. "To victims," 
Soma said, "Children's Center offers comfort, care and hope. To the community, we convey 
confidence that this serious challenge won't be ignored."  

I-6

http://pamplinmedia.com/component/contact/contact/


Clackamas Fire Chief Fred Charlton and Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation President 
Don Trotter presented the second check on April 14 ($4,000) to Rowe Middle School's Food for 
Success program. Evan King, the school's social worker began the program in 2011 to provide 
free, nutritious snacks to more than 600 students each school-day afternoon. With no extra 
money in the school budget, King reached out for help from area organizations and churches.  

The program's mission is to eliminate hunger during the school day, and through "partnerships 
like these, we can make sure that our students have what they need to succeed," said Greg 
Harris, principal of Rowe Middle School.  

The Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation consists of emergency service agencies within 
Clackamas County and provides assistance to people who've been affected by disaster, 
tragedy, injury or other adversities.  

"It is an honor to be able to support these two programs that are focusing on the well-being of 
children within our community," Charlton said.  

To learn more about the Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation and or to make a 
donation, visit clackamasfire.com/emergency-services-foundation.  

For more information or to learn ways that you can donate to the Children's Center, contact 
Development Director Ronecca Norvell at 503-655-7725 or ronecca@childrenscenter.cc. 

To learn more about the Food for Success program or to donate food, money or school supplies 
at Rowe Middle School, contact Evan King at 503-353-5741 or kingev@nclack.k12.or.us. 

 

mailto:ronecca@childrenscenter.cc
mailto:kingev@nclack.k12.or.us


Beavercreek Bulletin 

May 2017 edition 

Community Spotlight: Beavercreek Fire Department 
This month’s spotlight is on our local Clackamas Fire District #1 Station 10 in Beavercreek. We 
spoke with Battalion Chief Brian Burke and Capt. Robert Rector who shared the history of the 
station, as well as key things residents should know that could help them in the event of an 
emergency situation. 

BC Burke took us back to the early 1940s to explain the origins of the station. He said, “The 
Beavercreek Fire District was started at a threat from the incendiary bombs that the Japanese 
were releasing over here during World War II, so a bunch of farmers go together and formed a 
fire district.” Beavercreek was its own fire district until around 1995 when it merged with 
Clackamas Fire District #1. If you were in Beavercreek in the 1960s, you may remember the 
original fire station being in the building that is currently occupied by Brooks Motor Company. In 
2000,  its permanent home was built just a mile down the road at 22310 S. Beavercreek Road. 

Pictured above: Captain Robert Rector and Apparatus Operator Jeff Joles. Source: Bulletin 

Today Station 10 is staffed 24 hours a day, year-round, with at least one paramedic on duty and 
four paid personnel at all times. It is supplemented by volunteers from the Clarkes Fire Station 
and supported by surrounding Fire Stations including Oregon City and Redland. Station 10 
protects Beavercreek, Carus and Leland communities, and is also part of South Battalion. The 
station has a brush rig and two water tenders (10 and 13). Tenders are essentially special water 
tankers and are a very significant and unique part of the Beavercreek station. Because we do 
not have fire hydrants, the tenders allow the crew to transport large amounts of water (up to 

I-7



3,000 gallons) to remote sites throughout Beavercreek. The Beavercreek Fire Station is also 
unique in that it is responsible for maintaining annual testing on the specialty equipment in and 
around our area. 
 
We asked BC Burke what types of calls the station received most frequently. He said the 
number one calls are medical emergencies, followed by calls for assistance that come in during 
weather-related events – from brush fires in the summertime to ice-related problems in the 
winter. BC Burke pointed out that “there’s not really a rhyme or reason to when we get fire-
related calls” as they tend to happen throughout the entire year. 
 
The station has a Community Room that is available at no cost. Several non-profit organizations 
in the area utilize it on a pretty regular basis, including the Hamlet of Beavercreek Board of 
Directors, the Beavercreek Committee for Community Planning, and Back Country Horsemen 
Territorial Riders Chapter, to name a few. When the regular crew at Station 10 is able, they 
often participate in community events throughout the year and have visited both Beavercreek 
Elementary and Carus Schools to let the students and staff see the fire trucks up close and 
learn about fire safety. While Station 10 doesn’t host any events or classes, they are happy to 
give tours of the facility. If you’re interested in safety seminars, events and CPR classes, check 
the Station 1 calendar at https://sites.google.com/a/chealthcare.com/cfd1/ along with numerous 
other ways to stay connected to the Clackamas Fire District and our own Station 10. 
 
BC Burke and Captain Rector were eager to relay to Beavercreek residents the importance of 
evaluating your property for emergency response: 
 

• Proximity of landscaping to buildings. How close are trees to your residence? Did you 
know that in certain instances, if trees are too close to your home the fire department 
may not be able to assist? There are some guidelines that may help you in assessing 
what is near your home when it comes to safety and “save-ability” if there is a home fire. 
This is important to understand and they encourage you to do your due diligence for 
your own safety. More information can be found at www.clackamasfire.com. 

 
• Accessibility is also extremely important. How accessible are your buildings (homes, 

barns, shops, etc.) from the main road? Are the entrances to your property tall enough 
for the fire apparatus to fit under or between? It is 10.5 feet tall and 9.5 feet wide, and if it 
doesn’t safely fit they cannot and will not enter. Also if there is not an engineered bridge 
to maintain the weight of the fire truck or water tender to cross over to get you, again 
they won’t be able to help for safety reasons. 
 

Captain Rector also strongly suggests that residents check to ensure their house number is 
visible from the road. He said, “The house numbers are not as easily found out in these rural 
areas like they are when they are painted on sidewalks in the city. If the numbers are hard for us 
to see (especially at night) it will be hard for us to see too. If there is a fork in the road and it may 
be confusing to quickly locate your house number, it is helpful if someone can meet any crew 
member at that fork in the road or at the end of a driveway to give direction.” 
 
As you can tell, fire departments have safety guidelines for both the crew and the fire trucks to 
adhere to. These are just a few tips on what Hamlet residents can do to ensure safe passage to 
your residences, but there are numerous links on the main website and they welcome your 
phone call to answer any questions you may have. 
 

https://sites.google.com/a/chealthcare.com/cfd1/
http://www.clackamasfire.com/


Beavercreek residents can stay connected via their website 
at http://www.clackamasfire.com/fire-stations/station-10-beavercreek/ or by calling Station 10’s 
general line at 503-742-2600. 

 

 

http://www.clackamasfire.com/fire-stations/station-10-beavercreek/

	Clackamas Fire District #1
	Board Meeting
	May 15, 2017

	Agenda - 5-15-17.pdf
	Meeting Location:  Mt. Scott Fire Station
	I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.710
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION ON APRIL 17, 2017 AND THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 17, 2017
	IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (The President will call for statements from citizens regarding District business, not to exceed three minutes per person.)

	VI. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required. (These items will be presented individually by staff or other appropriate individuals. A synopsis of each item together with a brief statement of the action being requested shall be made by those appearing on b...
	VII. INFORMATIONAL ONLY
	VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660(2)(e)


	R-1b Admin Serv.pdf
	Administrative Services Division

	April 2017 R-1c Emerg Serv.pdf
	Emergency Services Division - April 2017
	Emergency Services - Chief Scheirman April 2017
	April 2017
	Clackamas Fire Station Report April 2017
	Pages from April 2017
	Facility Maintenance -monthly board report April 2017
	Emergency Services - May 17 mtg
	Monthly Board Report April 2017 - HR
	Emergency Services - Logistics Manager_April 2017
	Training Division -April 2017
	Wellness Board Report - April 2017
	Monthly Board Report January 2017

	Volunteer Services - April report.pdf
	Recruitment
	Explorers
	Station Coverage

	2017 April Combined Board Report.pdf
	2017 April Board Report Memo
	2017_April_Inspections_for_Board_Report
	2017_April_Special_Inspections
	2017 April CFD BFD False Alarms and Fires Graphs
	Board Report - May.pdf
	Administrative Services Division


	INFORMATIONAL ITEMS.pdf
	4-16-17 Fire hits close to home for Damascus firefighters.pdf
	Clackamas Review/Oregon City News
	Fire hits close to home for Damascus firefighters

	4-26-17 Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation donations to help children.pdf
	Clackamas Review/Oregon City News
	Clackamas Emergency Services Foundation donations to help children


	Operations Board Report-Combined.pdf
	Incident by Mo and year BOARD
	Call Breakdown Graphs
	MUAid Given to Rec.
	MUAid Given App. Overview
	Incident Types by FMZ
	FMZ Incident Graph
	App Resp by unit st.
	App Resp by Unit Graph MONTH
	App Resp by Unit Graph (YEAR)
	04_April_2017_U_S_R Operations Response Report All INCIDENT TYPES.pdf
	Master


	Financial Services - Finance Division.pdf
	Financial Services Summary

	Agenda - 5-15-17.pdf
	Meeting Location:  Mt. Scott Fire Station
	I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.710
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION ON APRIL 17, 2017 AND THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 17, 2017
	IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (The President will call for statements from citizens regarding District business, not to exceed three minutes per person.)

	VI. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required. (These items will be presented individually by staff or other appropriate individuals. A synopsis of each item together with a brief statement of the action being requested shall be made by those appearing on b...
	VII. INFORMATIONAL ONLY
	VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660(2)(e)


	Facility Maintenance -REVISED.pdf
	Emergency Services Division

	EMS Training Officer - Verkest - REVISED.pdf
	Emergency Services Division

	Training Division -REVISED.pdf
	Emergency Services Division

	Agenda - 5-15-17 - redlined.pdf
	Meeting Location:  Mt. Scott Fire Station
	I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.710
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION ON APRIL 17, 2017 (pg. 4) AND THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 17, 2017 – (pg. 7)
	IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (The President will call for statements from citizens regarding District business, not to exceed three minutes per person.)

	VI. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required. (These items will be presented individually by staff or other appropriate individuals. A synopsis of each item together with a brief statement of the action being requested shall be made by those appearing on b...
	VII. INFORMATIONAL ONLY
	VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660(2)(e)


	Agenda - 5-15-17 - Regular Bd Mtg.pdf
	Meeting Location:  Mt. Scott Fire Station
	I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.710
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION ON APRIL 17, 2017 AND THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 17, 2017
	IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (The President will call for statements from citizens regarding District business, not to exceed three minutes per person.)

	VI. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required. (These items will be presented individually by staff or other appropriate individuals. A synopsis of each item together with a brief statement of the action being requested shall be made by those appearing on b...
	VII. INFORMATIONAL ONLY
	VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660(2)(e)


	Agenda - 5-15-17 - redlined.pdf
	Meeting Location:  Mt. Scott Fire Station
	I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.710
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION ON APRIL 17, 2017 (pg. 4) AND THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 17, 2017 – (pg. 7)
	IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (The President will call for statements from citizens regarding District business, not to exceed three minutes per person.)

	VI. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required. (These items will be presented individually by staff or other appropriate individuals. A synopsis of each item together with a brief statement of the action being requested shall be made by those appearing on b...
	VII. INFORMATIONAL ONLY
	VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660(2)(e)





